
   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 

 

 
 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDA – AMENDED 

Date:   2/25/2020 
Time:  5:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 

 
This amended agenda includes updated title and staff report to item G1. and the addition of informational 
item I4. 
 
According to City Council policy, all regular meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there 
is a super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered 
after 11:00 p.m. 
 
5:30 p.m. Closed Session (City Hall - “Downtown” Conference Room, 1st Floor) 

Public Comment on these items will be taken before adjourning to Closed Session.  

CL1. Labor negotiations (Gov. Code section 54957.6) 
 

Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Manager 
Nick Pegueros, City Attorney Bill McClure, Administrative Services Director Lenka Diaz, Human 
Resources Manager Theresa DellaSanta 

 
Employee Organization:  American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees Local 
829 (AFSCME) and Confidential employees; Service Employees International Union Local 521 
(SEIU); Menlo Park Police Sergeants Association (PSA); Menlo Park Police Officers’ Association 
(POA); and Unrepresented Management 

 
7:00 p.m. Regular Session 
 
A. Call To Order 

 
B. Roll Call 

 
C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
D. Report from Closed Session 

 
E. Public Comment 
  
 Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the City Council on any subject not listed on the 

agenda. Each speaker may address the City Council once under public comment for a limit of three 
minutes. Please clearly state your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live. The 
City Council cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the City Council cannot 
respond to non-agenda issues brought up under public comment other than to provide general 
information. 

 
F. Consent Calendar  



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Agenda – AMENDED 
February 25, 2020 
Page 2 

 

 
F1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for January 28 and 30 2020 (Attachment) 
 
F2. Receive and file information on police department’s strategic plan initiative and stakeholder 

meetings (Staff Report #20-040-CC) 
 
F3. Approve payment of $91,072 to the County of San Mateo for participation in the fiscal year 2019-20 

office of emergency services joint powers agreement (Staff Report #20-041-CC) 
 
F4. Approve interim city attorney services agreement with Jorgenson, Siegel, McClure & Flegel, LLP 

(Staff Report #20-038-CC) 
 
F5. Receive and file an update on the Menlo Park Transportation Management Association feasibility 

study (Staff Report #20-042-CC) 
 
F6. Adopt Resolution No. 6543 supporting the City’s shuttle program for application for the San Mateo 

County shuttle program fiscal year 2020-21 and fiscal year 2021-22 and authorize the city manager 
to enter into funding agreements (Staff Report #20-043-CC) 

 
F7. Adopt fiscal year 2020-21 budget principles (Staff Report #20-044-CC) 
 
G. Public Hearing  
 
G1. Adoption of urgency Ordinance No. 1066 amending Chapter 16.79 and Section 16.04.295 [Definition 

of Dwelling Unit, Secondary] of the Menlo Park Municipal Code to comply with recent State 
legislation pertaining to accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units 
Adoption of urgency Ordinance No. 1066 Amending Chapter 16.79 and Section 16.04.295 
[Definition of Dwelling Unit, Secondary] of the Menlo Park Municipal Code to comply with recent 
State Legislation pertaining to accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units and 
direction regarding additional updates (Staff Report #20-048-CC) 

 
G2. Adopt Resolution Nos. 6544, 6545, and 6546 establishing utility underground districts for Alma 

Street; Downtown Parking Plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo Avenue; and Middlefield Road                      
(Staff Report #20-045-CC) 

 
H. Regular Business  
 
H1. Approve the interim service levels provided during the construction of the Belle Haven community 

center and library project, appropriate $1 million for interim services, and waive purchasing 
requirements and increase the city manager purchasing authority to $500,000 for interim services 
(Staff Report #20-039-CC) 

 
I. Informational Items  
 
I1. City Council agenda topics: March 2020 to May 2020 (Staff Report #20-035-CC) 
 
I2. Transmittal of background information on the City’s 2019-2024 capital improvement plan            

(Staff Report #20-046-CC) 



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Agenda – AMENDED 
February 25, 2020 
Page 3 

 

 
I3. Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE) (Staff Report #20-047-CC) 
 
I4. Update on potential marketing of United States Geological Survey (USGS) property and update on 

process for amending zoning (Staff Report #20-051-CC) 
 
J. City Manager's Report  
 
K. City Councilmember Reports 
 
L. Adjournment 
 

At every regular meeting of the City Council, in addition to the public comment period where the public shall have the right 
to address the City Council on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right 
to directly address the Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during 
the City Council’s consideration of the item.  
 
At every special meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on 
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during consideration of the item.  
For appeal hearings, appellant and applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.  
If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of 
Menlo Park at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public 
record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the city clerk’s office, 701 
Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours. Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or 
services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620. 
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956. Members of the public 
can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at menlopark.org/agenda and can receive 
email notification of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Notify Me” service at menlopark.org/notifyme. 
Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 2/20/2020) 

 

http://menlopark.org/agenda
http://www.menlopark.org/notifyme


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 

 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 

Date:   1/28/2020 
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 

 
7:00 p.m. Regular Session 
 
A. Call To Order  
 
 Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
B.  Roll Call  
 
 Present: Carlton, Combs, Nash, Mueller, Taylor 
 Absent: None 
 Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Cara Silver, City Clerk Judi A. Herren 
 
C.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 Mayor Taylor led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D.  Public Comment 
  

• Judy Adams spoke in support of City Council joining the "Back from the Brink" campaign 
(Attachment).  

• Richard Duda spoke in support of City Council joining the "Back from the Brink" campaign.  
• Elias Blawie spoke on the City's big picture and priorities.  
• Michael Doran spoke in support of a new or updated accessory dwelling unit ordinance. 
• Patti Fry spoke on goal setting and prioritizing traffic relief and the jobs housing imbalance.  
• Charlie Peter spoke on health and safety (Attachment). 
• Gail Wilkerson spoke on rental restrictions on Willow Road. 

 
E. Presentations and Proclamations 
 
E1. 2019 STEM Winners 
 
 Mayor Taylor presented the Certificate of Recognition to Om Chhaya.  
 
 Om Chhaya accepted the Certificate of Recognition and made a presentation on his project. 
 
E2. Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District 
 
 MidPen Open Space District Assistant General Manager Susanna Chan made the presentation 

(Attachment). 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM F-1

Page F1.1



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
January 28, 2020 
Page 2 

 

F.  Consent Calendar  
 
F1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for December 10, 2019 (Attachment) 
 
F2. Reject bid for the Hydration Station Improvement project (Staff Report #20-017-CC) 
 
F3. Authorize the city manager to execute a contract amendment with Accela, Inc. for direct access to 

the SaaS database for enhanced reporting and data recovery not to exceed $74,967.98  
 (Staff Report #20-013-CC) 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Combs/ Nash) to approve the consent calendar, passed unanimously. 
 
G. Public Hearing 

G1. Adopt resolution no. 6535 to approve architectural control, a vesting tentative map, removal of one 
on-street parking space, and denial of a variance for a mixed use development at 706-716 Santa 
Cruz Avenue; and adopt resolution no. 6536 to approve a below market rate housing agreement 
with 706-716 Santa Cruz Ave, LLC. (Staff Report #20-020-CC) 

 
 Senior Planner Kaitie Meador made the presentation (Attachment). 
 
 Applicant Bob Giannini made a presentation (Attachment). 
 
 Mayor Taylor opened the public hearing. 
 
 By acclamation, Mayor Taylor closed the public hearing. 
 
 The City Council discussed the below market rate (BMR) and electric vehicle (EV) parking 

requirements.  The City Council made sufficient findings to approve the variance. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Combs/ Carlton) to adopt resolution no. 6535 to approve architectural control, 
a vesting tentative map, removal of one on-street parking space, and approval of a variance for a mixed use 
development at 706-716 Santa Cruz Avenue; and adopt resolution no. 6536 to approve a below market rate 
housing agreement with 706-716 Santa Cruz Ave, LLC, passed unanimously. 
 
 City Council took a break at 8:58 p.m. 
 
 City Council reconvened at 9:08 p.m. 
 
H. Regular Business  
 
H1. Resolution of intent for the construction of a new community center and library in the Belle Haven 

neighborhood (Staff Report #20-014-CC) 
 
 Vice Mayor Combs was recused and exited the chambers at 9:09 p.m. 
 
 Deputy City Manager Justin Murphy made the presentation (Attachment). 

Page F1.2

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24046/F1-20191210-City-Council-special-and-regular-minutes---DRAFT
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24047/F2-20200128-CC-Bid-rejection---Hydration-Station
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24048/F3-20200128-CC-Accela-Contract-Ammendment-Enhanced-Reporting-Database
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24055/G1-20200128-CC-706-Santa-Cruz
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24049/H1-20200128-CC-BHCCL-update-slip-sheet


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
January 28, 2020 
Page 3 

 

  
Facebook representative Fergus O'Shea made a presentation (Attachment). 

 
City Council took a break at 9:36 p.m. 

 
 City Council reconvened at 9:37 p.m. 
 

• Pastor Teirrah McNair spoke in support of the project and retaining the name Onetta Harris 
Community Center.   

• Greg Goodwin spoke in opposition of renaming the Onetta Harris Community Center.   
• Gail Wilkerson spoke in support of retaining the Onetta Harris Community Center name.  
• Adrian F. Perkins spoke in support of retaining the name Onetta Harris Community Center and 

expressed concerns on the cost to the public when using the facilities.  
• John Joseph Contreras spoke in support of a basement level in the new project and in support of 

retaining the name Onetta Harris Community Center.  
• Pamela Jones spoke in support of the project webpage and requested the inclusion of 

neighboring schools in project related conversations. 
• David Harper spoke in support of retaining the Onetta Harris Community Center name. 
• Israel Harris spoke in support of retaining the Onetta Harris Community Center name and 

requested upcoming important dates pertaining to the project be made easily available to the 
public. 

 
The City Council discussed backup power fuel options, the public engagement process and translating 
information (past and future) into Spanish. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Mueller/ Carlton) to adopt the Resolution of intent for the construction of a 
new community center and library in the Belle Haven neighborhood with a clarification to Item 9 that the 
community process for naming the new facility will include a timeline, passed 4-0-1 (Combs recused). 
 
 Vice Mayor Combs reentered the chambers at 10:28 p.m. 
 
H2. Removed – applicants withdrew appeal.  
  
H3.  Authorize the city manager to execute an agreement with MidPen Housing for transportation 

improvements to support their affordable housing and sustainable communities funding application 
(Staff Report #20-015-CC) 

 
 Deputy Community Development Director – Housing Rhonda Coffman and Interim Public Works 

Director Nikki Nagaya made the presentation (Attachment). 
 

• Karen Grove, representing Menlo Together, spoke in support of this application.  
• Pamela Jones spoke in favor of the MidPen project with the support of CalTrans.  
• Jen Wolosin, representing Parents for Safe Routes, spoke in support of the project.  
• Adina Levin, representing Menlo Together, spoke in support of the project. 
 
The City Council received clarification on the timeline for the grant application, staff and consultant 
costs, and CalTrans involvement.  
 

Page F1.3

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24051/H3-20200128-CC-Affordable-Housing-and-Sustainable-Communities-funding-application-slip-sheet


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
January 28, 2020 
Page 4 

 

By acclamation, the City Council extended the meeting past 11 p.m. 
ACTION: Motion and second (Mueller/ Nash) to authorize the city manager to execute an agreement with 
MidPen Housing for transportation improvements to support their affordable housing and sustainable 
communities funding application, passed unanimously. 
 
H4.  Certify the project environmental documents, approve the 30 percent project plans, and authorize 

the city manager to enter into all necessary agreements and amendments with the Peninsula Joint 
Powers Board (Caltrain) for the Middle Avenue pedestrian and bicycle rail crossing project  

 (Staff Report #20-018-CC) 
 
 Senior Project Manager Morad Fakhrai introduced the item. 
 

• Jen Wolosin, representing Parents for Safe Routes, spoke in support of the project. 
 
The City Council received clarification on the restrictions around the completion dates and reasons 
around the reduction in estimated project cost estimate. 

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Mueller/ Carlton) to certify the project environmental documents, approve the 
30 percent project plans, and authorize the city manager to enter into all necessary agreements and 
amendments with the Peninsula Joint Powers Board (Caltrain) for the Middle Avenue pedestrian and bicycle 
rail crossing project, passed unanimously. 
 
H5. Receive subcommittee report on staff vacancies and provide direction to the city manager           

(Staff Report #20-022-CC) 
 
 This item was continued to a future meeting. 
 

• Karen Grove spoke in support of additional staff working on housing related projects. 
• Adina Levin spoke in support of pushing this item to a meeting after City Council goal setting. 
• Elias Blawie commented on the need to focus on the demand as well as the supply on City 

services and projects. 
 
I. Informational Items  
 
I1. Short-term rental regulation – community engagement and outreach summary, overview and next 

steps (Staff Report #20-019-CC) 
 

• Elias Blawie spoke on the housing crisis, over-building of corporate units, and expressed 
concerns on public engagement.  

• Karen Grove commented that more public outreach can be performed. 
 
City Council received clarification on different models of corporate housing and accessory dwelling 
units State laws and discussed transient occupancy tax and regulation of corporate rentals. 

 
I2. City Council agenda topics: February 11 2020 – March 24 2020 (Staff Report #20-012-CC) 
 
 The City Council received clarification on the upcoming regular meeting ordinance item. 
 
 

Page F1.4

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24052/H4-20200128-CC-MiddleCrossing
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24110/H5-20200128-CC-subcommittee-on-vacant-positions
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24053/I1-20200128-CC-Short-Term-Rental-Community-Engagement-Overview
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24054/I2-20200128-CC-Agenda-topics


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
January 28, 2020 
Page 5 

 

 
J. City Manager's Report  
 
 None. 
 
K.  City Councilmember Reports 
 
 None. 
 
L.  Adjournment 
 
 Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting at 11:39 p.m. 
 
 Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 

Page F1.5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page F1.6



City Council 

 

 City of Menlo Park   701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
SPECIAL MEETING – CITY COUNCIL GOAL SETTING MINUTES – DRAFT 

Date:   1/30/2020 
Time:  1:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers  
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 

   
1:00 p.m.  Special Meeting 

A.  Call to Order 

 Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 1:05 p.m. 

B.  Roll Call 

 Present: Carlton, Combs, Nash, Mueller, Taylor 
 Absent: None 

Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Cara Silver, City Clerk Judi A. 
Herren 

 
 Public Comment 

• Greg Faris spoke in support of the annexation of the Menlo Triangle. 
• Lisa William spoke in support of banning gas powered garden tools. 
• Leah Elkins spoke in support of banning gas powered leaf blowers (Attachment). 
• Mitch Slomiak spoke in support of greenhouse gas reduction targets. 
• Pamela Jones spoke in support of an independent redistricting commission and increasing 

police transparency. 
• Jen Wolosin, representing Menlo Together, spoke in support of housing, transportation, climate 

action, and equity as top priorities. 
• Jennifer Bestor commented on updating the Education Code with a regional cost supplement for 

Belle Haven’s funding. 
• Heyward Robinson commented on the importance of the goal setting meeting for the City 

Council to focus on goals and not projects and provided techniques to ensure that goals are 
being met throughout the year.  

• Karen Grove, representing Menlo Together, spoke in support of prioritizing housing in downtown 
near the Caltrain station. 

• Andrew Marcus spoke in support of creating a connection between M-2 and Belle Haven and 
requested revisiting eligibility requirements for below market rate (BMR) units. 

• Florence Thompson spoke in support of more communication from the City to the Belle Haven 
neighborhood and joining the Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE). 

• Julie Shanson spoke in support of joining GARE. 
• Vicky Robledo spoke in support of joining GARE and expressed concerns of pollution in the 

Belle Haven neighborhood. 

Page F1.7



City Council Special Meeting – Goal Setting Minutes – DRAFT 
January 30, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 City of Menlo Park   701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

• Tom Kabat spoke in support of the City being a leader to combat climate crisis. 
• Diane Bailey, representing Menlo Together and Menlo Spark, spoke in support of prioritizing 

climate actions. 
• Pushpinder Lubana requested that City Council revisit the current culture of the City.. 
 
Public comment emails received on city.council@menlopark.org (CCIN) (Attachment). 

 
C.  Regular Business 

C1. Annual goal-setting workshop (Staff Report #20-023-CC) 

 City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson introduced the item. 

 Assistant City Attorney Cara Silver and Community Service Director Deanna Chow made a 
presentation (Attachment). 

 The City Council discussed goals and priorities and received clarification on SB330 (Attachment). 

 Public Comment 

• Ryann Price spoke in support of climate crisis as a priority. 
• Robert Jones, Menlo Park Fire Protection District (MPFPD) President, submitted MPFPD’s top 

eight priorities. 
• Jim Lewis spoke in support of public safety, the need for an emergency operations center, and 

an updated disaster preparedness community plan. 
• Katie Berhoozi commented on the interconnection of safety, climate, housing, and social justice. 
• Michael Bostic spoke in support of equality across Menlo Park. 
 
The City Council discussed how to prioritize new State mandates, utilization of City commissions 
and committees to support priorities and work plan, and the top projects that promote the greater 
good on the entire community. 
 
City Council took a break at 3:13 p.m. 
 
City Council reconvened at 3:42 p.m. 
 
City Council discussed priorities: climate action, housing, compliance with State laws, residential 
requests, zero homelessness initiative, transportation, and GARE. 
 
Vice Mayor Combs was recused and was excused at 5 p.m. 
 
City Council discussed the timeline and needs of the Belle Haven community center and library 
project. 

 
D.  Adjournment 

Page F1.8

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24114/C1-SR-publish-late-slip-sheet


City Council Special Meeting – Goal Setting Minutes – DRAFT 
January 30, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 City of Menlo Park   701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 
 

 Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting at 5:08 p.m. 

Page F1.9



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page F1.10



Police 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-040-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Receive and file information on police department’s 

strategic plan initiative and stakeholder meetings  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends City Council receive and file information on the police department’s strategic plan 
initiative and public stakeholder meetings. 

 
Policy Issues 
There are no policy issues related to this consent calendar item.  

 
Background 
The Menlo Park police department prides itself on providing our community with innovative solutions and 
best practices in the delivery of our law enforcement and related services. Since 2018, the police 
department has gone through a restructuring, which has resulted in a fully staffed traffic unit and community 
response team. We have added resources to code enforcement and communications along with 
maintaining robust community engagement. As these changes are now complete, the police department is 
embarking on a strategic plan initiative, which will be the roadmap in our continuous quest for a 
collaborative, transparent and trusting relationship with the many facets of the community we serve.  

 
Analysis 
The strategic plan initiative will involve both internal and external stakeholder input, including all employees 
of the police department, non-police employees of the City of Menlo Park, and community members. We will 
be hosting three facilitated stakeholder meetings for the public to attend and contribute their thoughts and 
priorities for the future direction of police department. The dates and locations for these meetings are: 

 
• February 29, 10 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. – Menlo Park Senior Center 110 Terminal Avenue  
• March 7, 10 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. – Upper Laurel School Atrium 275 Elliott Drive 
• March 21, 10 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. – La Entrada Middle School 2200 Sharon Road 
 
We invite all interested parties to attend these meetings to give a voice to your priorities, concerns and input 
for the police department strategic plan. The goal of these meetings is collaboration, where we will look for 
advice and innovation, which will be incorporated in the plan to the maximum extent possible.  
 
Light refreshments will be served at all three community meetings.  
 
We anticipate the entire strategic plan initiative to be completed by June 2020 at which time it will be 
presented to City Council. 

AGENDA ITEM F-2

Page F2.1



Staff Report #: 20-040-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact of city resources.  

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
None. 

  
 
Report prepared by: 
Dave Bertini, Chief of Police 

Page F2.2



Police 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-041-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Approve payment of $91,072 to the County of San 

Mateo for participation in the fiscal year 2019-20 
office of emergency services joint powers 
agreement  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving a payment of $91,072 to the County of San Mateo for participation in the fiscal 
year 2019-20 office of emergency services joint powers agreement. 

 
Policy Issues 
City Council adopted Resolution No. 6247, accepting a joint powers agreement between the county of San 
Mateo and the City of Menlo Park. The amount of the invoice is above the city manager’s authority and 
must be approved by City Council.  

 
Background 
On January 13, 2015, City Council adopted Resolution No. 6247, accepting a joint powers agreement 
between the county of San Mateo and the City of Menlo Park. The joint powers authority (JPA) agreement 
between the City of Menlo Park and the San Mateo County office of emergency services dates from 1997. 
In 2015, the JPA agreement was updated to reflect the current relationships between the county of San 
Mateo and the participating cities and other partners to provide a clear understanding of the mission of the 
emergency services council and the emergency coordinators within the county, cities and other participating 
partner agencies/jurisdictions. The JPA provides the City of Menlo Park with office of emergency services 
participation, state mandated planning services and hazardous materials response.  

 
Analysis 
On April 19, 2019, the Emergency Services Council (ESC) met and discussed the JPA agreement. At that 
meeting, an increase in the office of emergency services budget was approved (Attachment A.) The police 
department anticipated this increase (approximately $20,000) and the currently budgeted amount will be 
sufficient for the current payment. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
The $91,072 is within the budgeted amount for the JPA agreement services. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

AGENDA ITEM F-3

Page F3.1



Staff Report #: 20-041-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. ESC memorandum and invoice 
B. Office of emergency service JPA agreement 

  
 
Report prepared by: 
Dave Bertini, Chief of Police 

Page F3.2



ATTACHMENT A

Page F3.3



Page F3.4



Page F3.5



ATTACHMENT B

Page F3.6



Page F3.7



Page F3.8



Page F3.9



Page F3.10



Page F3.11



Page F3.12



Page F3.13



Page F3.14



Page F3.15



Page F3.16



Page F3.17



Page F3.18



Page F3.19



Page F3.20



Page F3.21



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page F3.22



Administrative Services 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-038-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Approve interim city attorney services agreement 

with Jorgenson, Siegel, McClure & Flegel, LLP  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve an agreement between the City of Menlo Park and 
Jorgenson, Siegel, McClure & Flegel, LLP for interim city attorney services. 

 
Policy Issues 
There are no policy issues related to this consent item. 

 
Background 
The City Council is the hiring authority for the position and services of city attorney. The City currently 
contracts with William McClure of Jorgenson, Siegel, McClure & Flegel, LLP for city attorney services. On 
December 30, 2019, the City Council received and accepted Mr. McClure’s notice of retirement effective 
March 1 (last day of employment February 29.)  This notice fulfills the 60-day notice for termination of the 
agreement. 
 
The City Council created an ad hoc committee, comprised of Vice Mayor Combs and City Councilmember 
Mueller, to discuss recruitment of city attorney services. Mr. McClure’s agreement provided for 
compensation both as an employee and a contractor; an arrangement that is no longer allowable under the 
government code. After deliberating the advantages and disadvantages of hiring an employee or an 
independent contractor, the committee recommended, and the full City Council agreed to contract for full 
city attorney services. The City has issued a request for proposals (RFP) for city attorney services which 
has been widely distributed, including posting on the California League of Cities, city attorney list serve. 
While the City conducts the RFP process, the City must hire interim city attorney services. 
 
To provide for continuity of services, the City Council agreed to seek an agreement with Jorgenson, Siegel, 
McClure & Flegel, LLP for a period of up to six months, designating Cara Silver as the city attorney effective 
March 1. The proposed agreement includes the same hourly rates under the current agreement with Mr. 
McClure. The substantial changes from the current contract with Mr. McClure and the proposed contract 
with Jorgenson, Siegel, McClure & Flegel, LLP are removal of references to the defunct redevelopment 
agency and removal of provisions relating to Mr. McClure’s partial employment status (e.g., a retainer and 
employment and benefits with the City.) 

 
Impact on City Resources 
The City will no longer have pension and other benefit obligations for the position of city attorney, as all 
interim city attorney services will be filled through an independent contractor and not direct employment.  

AGENDA ITEM F-4

Page F4.1



Staff Report #: 20-038-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Report prepared by: 
Lenka Diaz, Administrative Services Director 
 

Page F4.2



Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number: 20-042-CC

Consent Calendar: Receive and file an update on the Menlo Park 
Transportation Management Association feasibility 
study  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file this update on the Menlo Park Transportation 
Management Association feasibility study. 

Policy Issues 
The development of a Transportation Management Association (TMA) supports the City’s transportation 
demand management (TDM) program guidelines and is listed as program CIRC-6.B in the 2016 general 
plan circulation element to “assist local residents, employees, students, and other community members in 
identifying and taking advantage of travel options between employment centers and rail connections, 
downtown and nearby cities.” The development of a TMA was identified as one of the City Council’s 
priorities in the 2019 work plan, and is also a strategy in the adopted climate action plan.  

Background 
The City of Menlo Park has robust TDM programs to reduce vehicle trips generated by new developments 
by encouraging transit, bicycling, shuttles, carpooling/vanpooling, telecommuting and other programs. A 
TMA is one element of TDM, and is typically a member-controlled organization that coordinates and 
provides transportation services in a specific area such as a commercial district. TMAs have been 
established recently in the nearby cities of Palo Alto and Mountain View. Redwood City is currently 
exploring options for a TMA, while East Palo Alto is developing a TDM ordinance.  

The City’s general plan update and rezoning of the Bayfront area established Office, Life Sciences and 
Residential Mixed Use zones, in which proposed development is required to have a TDM plan to reduce 
new vehicle trips by 20 percent below standard generation rates for any new construction or additions to 
existing buildings of 10,000 square feet or more. To achieve these 20 percent  reduction goals, there are a 
variety of eligible TDM measures including participation in a TMA.  

A joint request for proposal was released on behalf of the City of Menlo Park and City of Foster City in April 
2019 to search for qualified firms to conduct two separate TMA feasibility studies in Menlo Park and in 
Foster City. On July 15, 2019, City Council authorized the city manager to enter into an agreement with 
Steer Group. The scope of work includes gathering commute habit data and stakeholder outreach (Phase 
1,) a detailed analysis of TMA options (Phase 2,) and an implementation plan for a potential TMA (Phase 3.) 
Phase 1 stakeholders include Menlo Park businesses of all sizes and those at a regional level. This staff 
report serves as a status update for the TMA feasibility study and progress report for the Phase 1 work 
conducted over the last six months. 

AGENDA ITEM F-5

Page F5.1



Staff Report #: 20-042-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Manzanita Talks background 
Independent of the City-led initiatives, the City of Menlo Park was invited to participate in the Manzanita 
Talks (Attachment A) to discuss transportation challenges at a sub-regional level. These were convened by 
Joint Venture Silicon Valley, in partnership with the Bay Area Council, to create symposia of private and 
public entities to discuss first and last mile challenges, traffic mitigation, and the potential for coordinating 
with existing TMAs on a larger scale. A series of five discussions were held between April and October 
2019, where the City was a participant. Other invitees included Mid-Peninsula cities and private sector 
businesses: City of East Palo Alto, City of Los Altos, City of Mountain View, City of Palo Alto, City of 
Redwood City, City of Sunnyvale, Town of Atherton, Good City Company, Facebook, Genentech, Google, 
Intuit, LinkedIn, Palantir, Salesforce and Tesla.  

On January 14, the City Council received an update from Manzanita Works and Joint Venture Silicon Valley 
about the Manzanita Talks and authorized City Councilmember Mueller, who was Mayor at the time of the 
Talks, to sign the Manzanita Talks joint statement (Attachment B.) The work performed by Steer Group 
does not preclude any potential future membership or alliance with a sub-regional entity, such as that 
explored during the Manzanita Talks.  

This feasibility study is being conducted in parallel with the Manzanita Talks, to identify potential options and 
benefits to operating TMA(s) in Menlo Park. This would give a future Menlo Park TMA(s) the flexibility to be 
independent and form without delays in case joining an alliance is not viable or takes longer than 
anticipated. The main challenge of joining a future sub-regional TMA is the loss of local control for the 
greater good. As part of Phase 1, stakeholder outreach was crucial to understanding local challenges and 
needs. Gathering this information will guide the future phases and any potential sub-regional alliance, as it 
allows stakeholders to share their interest or concerns in working with other portions of the Menlo Park, let 
alone other cities.  

Analysis 
Since the notice to proceed in August 2019, Steer Group has primarily focused on Phase 1 of their scope of 
work. Phase 1 entailed conducting outreach to stakeholders and organizations, gathering survey data and 
analyzing existing data. Based on geographic boundaries and the natural clustering of businesses: the City 
was divided into four study zones: 
• Northern Menlo Park: businesses near U.S. 101
• Central Menlo Park: businesses such as the Veterans Affairs Medical Center, SRI, City Hall
• Downtown: businesses along Santa Cruz Avenue and nearby
• Southern Menlo Park: businesses near the Sand Hill Road corridor

Over the last six months, Steer Group reached out to stakeholders in Menlo Park, including both larger and 
medium/small-sized businesses, in these four zones and beyond. These stakeholders and organizations 
include the Menlo Park Chamber of Commerce, Tarlton Properties, Sobrato Organization, Facebook, 
Bohannon Companies, Palo Alto Veterans Affairs Medical Center (Menlo Park campus,) Stanford 
University, Commute.org, and Manzanita Talks representatives. Additionally, Steer Group developed a 
commute survey to share with the various stakeholders to better understand current opinions on commutes 
and how Menlo Park employees travel in general. Streetlight data, which is derived from geospatial data 
from devices such as mobile phones, was also analyzed to yield information on typical origin and 
destination (O&D) trips.  

O&D data is valuable to answer commute pattern questions. For example, O&D data will yield information 
such as zones with the highest number of trips in and out, where the majority of trips originate, and how the 

Page F5.2



Staff Report #: 20-042-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

zones compare to one another. This data, along with feedback from employees, offers more insight on what 
tools to offer as alternatives to single-occupant vehicle (SOV) trips, such as shuttles, bicycle share, or 
advocacy for more transit service. 

Steer compiled the data collected and findings from Phase 1 into an existing conditions report (Attachment 
C.) A brief summary of Steer’s findings is listed below: 
• Menlo Park’s location at the San Mateo/Santa Clara County line and near Palo Alto presents limitations

in public transportation options.
• There is an abundance of private shuttles, but access to the general public could help bridge the gaps in

public transportation services.
• TDM is mandated at many project sites, but provided TDM programs may differ by site due to

negotiations on a case-by-case basis.
• Individual TDM programs and services exist at larger businesses, but are not coordinated amongst

businesses at a zonal or City level.
• TDM programs are strongest in the Northern Menlo Park zone, but this zone can still benefit from

additional mode shift.
• Despite its location close to many transit lines, parking usage is still high in Downtown which leads to

complaints amongst both residents and visitors.
• Commute.org is a TMA-like organization for San Mateo County, and any future partnership between

Commute.org and a TMA should focus on efficiency and maximizing resources.

Next steps and schedule 
Following this status update to City Council in February 2020, Steer Group will begin refining best-fit TMA 
models for Menlo Park as part of Phase 2 using the findings from Phase 1, best practices and  local/national 
TMA models to propose potential models for Menlo Park. These options will account for the local needs of 
Menlo Park. They would also consider a potential future sub-regional alliance, as identified during the 
Manzanita Talks, if deemed viable based on a detailed analysis and progression of the Manzanita Talks.  

Steer Group is anticipated to return to City Council in March 2020 requesting guidance on which TMA 
models are preferred for in-depth analyses. As a part of Phase 3, this option(s) will be investigated 
thoroughly with an emphasis on TMA governance, cost benefit analysis, and a final recommendation on 
framework for a TMA and the City’s future role both short-term and long-term. This study is anticipated to 
conclude by July 2020, and lays the foundation for the next steps to establish a TMA in Menlo Park. Table 1 
shows the schedule for the feasibility study.  

Table 1: Updated next steps and schedule 
Completion of tasks Schedule 
Notice to proceed August 2019 

Phase 1: data collection 
Phase 1: Employer outreach 

December 2019 
Ongoing through 
June 2020 

City Council meeting 
Deliverable: existing conditions report February 25, 2020 

Phase 2: TMA background research 
Phase 2: Specific TMA model analyses 

January 2020 
March 2020 

City Council meeting 
Deliverable: TMA model analysis memo Tent. March 24 

Phase 3: cost benefit analysis 
Phase 3: final recommendations 

June 2020 
July 2020 

City Council meeting 
Deliverable: final report July 2020 

Page F5.3



Staff Report #: 20-042-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Impact on City Resources 
There is no new impact to City resources associated with this update. This feasibility study was funded by a 
$100,000 contribution by Facebook as required as part of the campus expansion project development 
agreement.  

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – Manzanita Talks: https://jointventure.org/initiatives/mobility/manzanita-talks
B. Hyperlink – January 14: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/23909/I4-20200114-CC-Manzanita-Talks
C. Hyperlink – Menlo Park TMA options analysis study: existing conditions:

menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24326/2-Att-C---Menlo-Park-TDM-Existing-Conditions-Report

Report prepared by: 
Nicholas Yee, Transportation Demand Management Coordinator 

Report reviewed by: 
Kristiann Choy, Acting Transportation Manager 

Page F5.4

https://jointventure.org/initiatives/mobility/manzanita-talks
https://menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24326/2-Att-C---Menlo-Park-TDM-Existing-Conditions-Report


Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number: 20-043-CC

Consent Calendar: Adopt Resolution No. 6543 supporting the City’s 
shuttle program for application for the San Mateo 
County shuttle program fiscal year 2020-21 and 
fiscal year 2021-22 and authorize the city manager 
to enter into funding agreements  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 6543 (Attachment A) in support of the 
Citywide shuttle program, for the San Mateo County shuttle program fiscal years 2020-21 and 2021-22 to 
continue funding for operations and administration of the program and authorize the city manager to enter 
into necessary funding agreements and any subsequent amendments within the budgeted amounts with 
grant agencies. 

Policy Issues 
This project is consistent with the 2016 general plan goal and policies to support local and regional transit 
that is efficient, frequent, convenient and safe. These policies seek to promote the use of public transit and 
to promote the use of alternatives to the single-occupant automobile. The grant requires an adopted 
resolution of support by the City Council as part of the application. 

Background 
The City of Menlo Park manages an extensive shuttle program that provides transit service to many 
residents, employees and visitors. The program is primarily funded by grants provided by the San Mateo 
City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG,) San Mateo County Transportation Authority (SMCTA) 
and Metropolitan Transportation Commission (via the San Mateo County Transit District.) These funds are 
typically made available following the successful completion of a competitive application process, an 
executed agreement between parties, and a demonstrated adherence to the agreement requirements. 

On January 13, C/CAG and the SMCTA issued a joint call for shuttle projects for fiscal years 2020-21 and 
2021-22. The program includes $10,000,000 for this two-year funding cycle, and direct costs for operations, 
marketing, and administration of shuttles are eligible for funding. The City’s shuttle program is currently 
supported by a grant through this program, expiring June 30, of which a successful application for this grant 
cycle will ensure continuation of funding. Applications are due February 21, and C/CAG and the SMCTA 
require a City Council resolution as part of the application submission. Prior notice was submitted to C/CAG 
and the SMCTA of the resolution’s delayed submission date, and after adoption it will be submitted as soon 
as possible.  

The shuttle program provides “around town” transportation to many residents, employees and visitors. The 
program includes the following services: 

AGENDA ITEM F-6

Page F6.1



Staff Report #: 20-043-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

• The M1-Menlo Midday shuttle provides a midday, fixed-route service between Sharon Heights and
downtown Menlo Park. It serves several senior housing facilities, Stanford Medical Center, Stanford
Shopping Center, Palo Alto Medical Foundation, downtown Palo Alto, Draeger’s and the Caltrain station.

• The M2-Belle Haven shuttle provides an all-day, fixed-route service between Belle Haven and downtown
Menlo Park. It serves several senior housing facilities, Menlo Park Senior Center, the Belle Haven library,
the Veterans Affairs Medical Center, the main library, Caltrain station, Little House and Safeway.

• The M3-Marsh Road shuttle provides fixed-route, peak-hour service between the Caltrain station and the
business parks and office complexes along Marsh Road, Bohannon Drive and the Bayfront Area.

• The M4-Willow Road shuttle provides fixed-route, peak-hour service between the Caltrain station and the
business parks and office complexes along Willow Road and O’Brien Drive.

• The Shoppers’ Shuttle is a door-to-door service, which operates three days per week providing
transportation for those not near a shuttle route or that have limited mobility. Destinations include Little
House, Menlo Park Senior Center, downtown Menlo Park, the main library, Safeway, Caltrain station,
Stanford Shopping Center, and retail destinations in Menlo Park and Redwood City.

Analysis 
By applying for funds through the San Mateo County shuttle program call for projects, the City of Menlo 
Park is seeking to ensure the continuation of the City’s shuttle program. The City’s proposed application 
includes continuation of the current services, with schedule and route adjustments to the community 
shuttles based on current performance results. 

The effectiveness of the City’s shuttle program is measured by two performance metrics, the average 
number of riders and the cost per rider, as compared to benchmarks for the type of service. The table below 
summarizes these metrics for each route. The benchmarks for service are set bi-annually by C/CAG and 
the SMCTA based on operations of the current routes in San Mateo County and shuttle management best 
practice information.  

Table 1: Benchmark metrics, by shuttle route 
Passengers per service hour Cost per rider 

Shuttle route Actual 
(fiscal year 2018-19) 

Service benchmark 
(fiscal year 2018-20) 

Actual 
(fiscal year 2018-19) 

Service benchmark 
(fiscal year 2018-20) 

M1-Menlo Midday1 1.1 Above 10 $74.31 Less than $10.00 

M2-Belle Haven 6.3 Above 10 $14.11 Less than $10.00 

M3-Marsh Road 17.4 Above 15 $6.60 Less than $8.00 

M4-Willow Road 26.1 Above 15 $6.90 Less than $8.00 

Shoppers’ 2.3 Above 2 $36.45 Less than $20.00 

Note: Fiscal year 2018-19 data are presented as the most recent complete fiscal year. 
1 Entire route suspended as of September 2018; benchmarks reflect poor ridership, drivers not complying with 
schedules, and ridership data from only two months of the fiscal year. 

As shown in Table 1, the program’s cost effectiveness (cost per rider) and ridership (passengers per hour) 
exceed the County’s standards for commuter shuttles (M3-Marsh Road and M4-Willow Road.) The 

Page F6.2



Staff Report #: 20-043-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

performance of the M1-Menlo Midday, M2-Belle Haven and Shoppers’ shuttles do not meet the cost 
effectiveness and/or ridership benchmarks, reflecting challenges over the past two years. The City’s shuttle 
vendor, MV Transportation, has had a driver shortage since October 2017 leading to many service 
disruptions. However, the City’s agreement with MV Transportation is part of a joint contract with 
Commute.org and is administered through SamTrans. Therefore, any changes to the contract requires all 
three parties to meet and confer. While this driver shortage has been a common occurrence recently 
amongst many Bay Area transit operators, it has affected the Menlo Park shuttle system as follows:  
• The M1-Menlo Midday shuttle had experienced poor ridership due to drivers not complying with

schedules, which is reflected in the benchmarks, and has been completely suspended since September
2018.

• The M2-Belle Haven shuttle has had one of its two regularly scheduled vehicles suspended since
October 2017.

• The M3-Marsh Road shuttle had one of its two regularly scheduled vehicles suspended since October
2017 due to the driver shortage, but the second vehicle was resumed in April 2019.

Proposed service changes 
As described in a 2018 staff report to City Council requesting funding for the fiscal year 2018-20 grant cycle, 
staff planned to combine the M1-Menlo Midday and M2-Belle Haven shuttles into a new M1-Crosstown 
shuttle route that would allow crosstown travel with no transfers. However, the challenges arising from the 
driver shortages required postponing the implementation of this new service. Given the unstable situation, 
marketing was kept at a minimum to prevent promoting services potentially at risk of daily or more 
permanent service suspensions, which would further erode trust and confidence in the shuttles. 

With the fiscal year 2020-22 grant application, staff’s goal is to increase ridership and better serve residents, 
employees and visitors of Menlo Park. With driver staffing levels becoming more stable, restoration of the 
second vehicle on the M2-Belle Haven shuttle route and resuming the M1-Menlo Midday shuttle is planned 
for spring 2020, with hopes to continue these services with the new grant cycle in fiscal year 2020-22 
contingent on driver availability. More information will be posted to the City’s shuttle website (Attachment B) 
to announce service increases as the information is finalized.  

Per the grant requirements for existing shuttles that do not meet the performance benchmarks, the City of 
Menlo Park consulted with SamTrans staff for technical assistance to improve the shuttle service. Through 
this technical assistance, SamTrans recommended continuing to operate two distinct community shuttle 
routes to minimize the length of travel time to key destinations. These two routes will increase reliability, 
accessibility, and connectivity for Belle Haven and Sharon Heights and promote independence, quality of 
life and health with one-seat rides to Stanford Shopping Center, Hoover Pavilion, and the Palo Alto Medical 
Foundation and connections at Palo Alto Caltrain to the new Stanford Hospital and Stanford University via 
the Marguerite shuttle, Stanford Eye / Ear Institutes via the Stanford Healthcare TECH shuttle, and multiple 
regional transit connections.  

In spring 2020, the future M1-Crosstown shuttle (renamed from the M2-Belle Haven) will extend the current 
M2-Belle Haven back to Palo Alto, adding destinations at Stanford Shopping Center, Hoover Pavilion, Palo 
Alto Medical Center, and the Palo Alto Caltrain station. Additional proposed changes include “short-turn” 
runs, which will allow quick turnarounds in the morning and afternoon peak periods. This will offer Belle 
Haven residents timed connections with Caltrain and an additional option for students at Menlo-Atherton 
High School. All other runs will operate the entire route to Palo Alto to serve the typical midday demographic 
focused on connectivity with various destinations across town. The goal is to have this shuttle serve 
residents of all ages and needs.  

Page F6.3



Staff Report #: 20-043-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

The future M2-Sharon Heights shuttle (renamed from the M1-Menlo Midday) is anticipated to return in 
spring 2020 connecting Sharon Heights with Downtown Menlo Park, Stanford Shopping Center, Hoover 
Pavilion, Palo Alto Medical Center, and the Palo Alto Caltrain station. The main change will be eliminating 
the one-way loop the shuttle drove to travel on Sand Hill Road and Santa Cruz Avenue. The M2-Sharon 
Heights shuttle will run in both directions on Santa Cruz Avenue to better serve residents along that corridor 
and supplement midday service for the peak-only SamTrans Route 286.  

Proposed program budget 
Similar to the last call for projects, the shuttle program requires a local match of at least 25 percent of the 
total program cost. The match can come from other grant sources or local City funds. The City’s program is 
currently funded through a variety of sources, including grants from C/CAG, SMCTA, the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission’s Lifeline Grant Program, and the City’s Development Shuttle Fee. Table 2 
below indicates the estimated program budget for fiscal years 2020-21 and 2021-22, since the San Mateo 
County shuttle program is administered in a two-year cycle.  

Table 2: Program budget 

Shuttle route Fiscal year 2018-19 
budget 

Fiscal year 2019-20 
budget 

Fiscal year 2020-21 
proposed budget 

Fiscal year 2021-22 
proposed budget 

M1-Crosstown1 
M2-Sharon Heights2 $580,300 $587,400 $594,600.00 $602,200 

M3-Marsh Road $274,400 $278,000 $310,200.00 $314,600 

M4-Willow Road $152,000 $154,600 $164,700.00 $167,500 

Shoppers’ $59,100 $60,200 $68,300.00 $69,600 

Total $1,065,800 $1,080,200 $1,137,800.00 $1,153,900 

Note: The M1-Crosstown and M2-Sharon Heights shuttles are two branches of a single line on the grant application.
1 M1-Crosstown was known as the M2-Belle Haven in fiscal year 2018-20, simply a route rename and no service loss. 
2 M2-Sharon Heights was known as the M1-Menlo Midday in fiscal year 2018-20, simply a route rename and no 
service loss.  

If awarded, the San Mateo County shuttle program will fund up to 75 percent of program cost in fiscal years 
2020-21 and 2021-22, with remaining program funds coming from sources outlined in Table 3 and 4 below. 
Staff recommends not applying for grant funding for the Shoppers’ shuttle at this time, as this route does not 
meet the benchmarks to be competitive in the call for projects and did not receive funding in the last round 
of the program. The City would need to continue to fund it at 100 percent of costs to maintain the service. 
This fiscal year, funding from the Measure A program for transportation programs was used to fund this 
service.  

At the time staff prepared this report, some of the other funding sources available for the shuttle program 
are uncertain, as grant applications also would need to be submitted for these programs during the next call 
for projects cycles. As such, staff has prepared two funding allocation scenarios: one where the City 
continues to be awarded potential funds from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Lifeline 
grant program (Table 3) and one without (Table 4.) Lifeline funding, which the City will apply for when the 
call is released later in 2020, is applicable only to the M1-Crosstown and M2-Sharon Heights shuttles, as it 
mobilizes elderly and low-income neighborhoods in Menlo Park. Lifeline would fund up to 40 percent of the 
M1-Crosstown and M2-Sharon Heights shuttles, with the other 60 percent coming from the San Mateo 

Page F6.4



Staff Report #: 20-043-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

County shuttle program grant funding. If the City does not receive Lifeline funding, the City would contribute 
25 percent with the remaining 75 percent coming from the San Mateo County shuttle program grant funding. 

The local match the City would need to provide for the Shuttle Program differs, contingent on it receiving 
Lifeline funding or not. Table 3, which anticipates Lifeline funding, shows the City would need to contribute 
up to $121,700 in fiscal year 2020-21 and $124,900 in fiscal year 2021-22 toward the shuttle program, for a 
total of $246,600 during the fiscal year 2020-22 grant cycle. This amount is consistent with the amount 
currently budgeted in fiscal year 2018-20. Table 4, which anticipates no Lifeline funding, shows the City 
would contribute $270,400 in fiscal year 2020-21 and $275,400 in fiscal year 2021-22 toward the shuttle 
program, totaling $545,800 during the fiscal year 2020-22 grant cycle to maintain the proposed service 
levels. If the Lifeline application is not successful, staff would return to the City Council for direction on 
service levels, alternative funding sources, or other strategies to fund the shortfall.  

Table 3: Allocation of program budget by source fund 
(with MTC lifeline award) 

Funding source SMCTA and 
C/CAG request 

MTC 
Lifeline award1 Developer fees2 Local match3 Total 

Fiscal year 2020-21 $713,000 $237,800 $65,300.00 $121,700.00 $1,137,800 

Fiscal year 2021-22 $722,900 $240,900 $65,300.00 $124,900.00 $1,153,9004 

Two year total $1,435,900 $478,700 $130,600.00 $246,600.00 $2,291,7004 
1 Metropolitan Transportation Commission Lifeline funding will either be a two-year or three-year cycle. 
2 The City collects approximately $65,300 per year from developer-required contributions to the City’s shuttle program. 
3 The local match from the City includes 100 percent of the cost for the Shoppers’ shuttle (approximately $60,000 
annually) as the City will not apply for grant funding. 
4 These amounts are off by $100 due to a rounding other amounts in the table. 

Table 4: Allocation of program budget by source fund 
(without MTC lifeline award) 

Funding source SMCTA and 
C/CAG request Developer fees1 Local match2 Total 

Fiscal year 2020-21 $802,200 $65,300.00 $270,400.00 $1,137,8003 

Fiscal year 2021-22 $813,200 $65,300.00 $275,400.00 $1,153,900 

Two year total $1,615,400 $130,600.00 $545,800.00 $2,291,7003 
1 The City collects approximately $65,300 per year from developer-required contributions to the City’s shuttle program. 
2 The local match from the City includes 100 percent of the cost for the Shoppers’ shuttle (approximately $60,000 
annually) as the City will not apply for grant funding. 
3 These amounts are off by $100 due to a due to rounding other amounts in the table. 

If the City is able to receive all requested grant funding and local matches, the following is the budgeted 
shuttle service for fiscal year 2020-22: 
• The M1-Crosstown shuttle will connect the Belle Haven neighborhood and Palo Alto via Willow Road and

downtown Menlo Park, with two 20-passenger vehicles operating between 7 a.m. and 6 p.m.
• The M2-Sharon Heights shuttle will connect the Sharon Heights neighborhood and Palo Alto via Santa

Page F6.5



Staff Report #: 20-043-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Cruz Avenue and downtown Menlo Park, with one 20-passenger vehicle operating between 9 a.m. and 4 
p.m.

• The M3-Marsh Road shuttle will connect the Menlo Park Caltrain and the Marsh Road business parks,
with two 28-passenger vehicles operating between 7 a.m. and 10 p.m. and 3 p.m. and 6:30 p.m.

• The M4-Willow Road shuttle will connect the Menlo Park Caltrain and the Willow Road business parks,
with one 28-passenger vehicle operating between 7 a.m. and 10 p.m. and 3 p.m. and 6:30 p.m.

• The Shoppers’ Shuttle will provide door-to-door service, with one 20-passenger vehicle operating
between 9:30 a.m. and 1:30 p.m. Service to Redwood City will be available on Tuesdays, with service
around Menlo Park and parts of Palo Alto available on Wednesdays and Saturdays.

Impact on City Resources 
The estimated total annual cost of the M1-Crosstown, M2-Sharon Heights, M3-Marsh Road, M4-Willow 
Road, and Shoppers’ shuttle services is $1,137,800 in fiscal year 2020-21 and $1,153,900 in fiscal year 
2021-22. The funding for the City’s share of 25 percent comes from the City’s Development shuttle fee, 
Measure A funds, and the MTC Lifeline Grant Program (this program provides a maximum of 40 percent for 
the M1-Crosstown and M2-Sharon Heights shuttles.)  

Environmental Review 
This proposed action is categorically exempt under the current California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines as this is a service already operated by the City. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

Attachments 
A. Resolution no. 6543 supporting the City’s shuttle program
B. Hyperlink: menlopark.org/shuttles

Report prepared by: 
Nicholas Yee, Transportation Demand Management Coordinator 

Report reviewed by: 
Kristiann Choy, Acting Transportation Manager 

Page F6.6

http://www.menlopark.org/shuttles


RESOLUTION NO. 6543 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
SUPPORTING THE CITY’S SHUTTLE PROGRAM AND SUBMITTING AN 
APPLICATION FOR SAN MATEO COUNTY SHUTTLE PROGRAM FUNDING 

WHEREAS, there is a need for “around town” transportation to serve many residents, 
employees and visitors; and 

WHEREAS, City of Menlo Park manages an extensive shuttle program to provide commuter 
service to and from the Menlo Park Caltrain station and community shuttle service to link 
residents to vital community services and destinations; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the City’s shuttle program is estimated to be $2,291,700 
over fiscal years 2020-21 and 2021-22; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to sponsor the City’s shuttle program; and 

WHEREAS, the City seeks up to $1,615,400 for the Program in fiscal years 2020-21 and 2021-
22; and 

WHEREAS, June 7, 1988, the voters of San Mateo County approved a ballot measure to allow 
the collection and distribution by the San Mateo County Transportation Authority (TA) of a half-
cent transactions and use tax in San Mateo County for 25 years, with the tax revenues to be 
used for highway and transit improvements pursuant to the transportation expenditure plan 
presented to the voters (Original Measure A); and 

WHEREAS, November 2, 2004, the voters of San Mateo County approved the continuation of 
the collection and distribution by the TA the half-cent transactions and use tax for an additional 
25 years to implement the 2004 transportation expenditure plan beginning January 1, 2009 
(New Measure A); and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of 
San Mateo County at its February 14, 2002 meeting approved the Congestion Relief Plan and 
subsequently reauthorized the Congestion Relief Plan in 2007, 2010, 2015, and 2019; and 

WHEREAS, a component of the C/CAG Congestion Relief Plan is to support local and employer 
based shuttle Programs; and 

WHEREAS, the TA and C/CAG issued a joint call for projects for the San Mateo County shuttle 
program on January 13, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the TA and C/CAG require a governing board resolution from the City in support of 
the City’s application for $1,615,400 from the San Mateo County shuttle program for the City’s 
shuttle program; and 

WHEREAS, TA and C/CAG require a governing board resolution from the City committing the 
City to the completion of the City’s shuttle program; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 

ATTACHMENT A

Page F6.7



Resolution No. 6543 
Page 2 of 2 

2 

1. Directs staff to submit an application for funding from the San Mateo County Shuttle
Program for $1,615,400 for the City’s Shuttle Program.

2. Authorizes the City Manager to execute a funding agreement with the San Mateo County
Transportation Authority to encumber any Measure A local shuttle program funds and/or
City/County Association of Governments Local Transportation Services Program funds
awarded.

3. Let it be known the City commits to the completion of the City’s shuttle program if
awarded the requested funds from San Mateo County shuttle program.

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-fifth day of February, 2020, by the following votes:  

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

RECUSED: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twenty-fifth day of February, 2020. 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page F6.8



City Manager's Office 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number: 20-044-CC

Consent Calendar: Adopt fiscal year 2020-21 budget principles 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt updated budget principles for fiscal year 2020-21 as provided 
in Attachment A.  

Policy Issues 
Menlo Park Municipal Code Section 2.08.080 (8) provides that the city manager must “prepare and submit 
to the city council the annual budget.” To ensure that the city manager’s proposed budget is built on 
foundational principles set by the City Council, the City Council must provide those principles by the end of 
February. 

Background 
Historically the City Council adopts its budget principles each year as part of the goal-setting process. The 
2020 goal-setting process is not expected to conclude until April. Given that the budget is substantially 
complete in April, City Council action on the budget principles is required prior to completion of the goal-
setting process. 

Analysis 
To ensure that the city manager’s proposed fiscal year 2020-21 budget reflects the City Council’s 
foundational budget principles, staff has overhauled the budget principles as outlined in the attached 
memorandum. Absent a specific discussion on budget principles, staff reflected on discussions and 
direction provided at recent City Council meetings for guidance. 

Proposed City of Menlo Park’s foundational principles and action items for the fiscal year 2020-21 budget: 

1. Promote the City’s long-term fiscal sustainability
a) Monitor and report on changes in CalPERS liabilities and incorporate full payoff of unfunded pension

liabilities by 2030-31; adjusted annually to reflect experience and assumption changes in the
actuarial models

b) Invest in technologies that minimize low value-add processes and most efficiently utilize our talented
staff

c) Strive to achieve City Council cost recovery goals for all fee-based services
d) Continue to evaluate the most cost-effective method to provide services at a specified level that

provide the City with flexibility in all economic conditions, including the use of contracted services,
shared services, and regular and limited-term employees

AGENDA ITEM F-7

Page F7.1



Staff Report #: 20-044-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

e) Proactively manage the loss of institutional knowledge through documentation of procedures,
practices, and processes and succession planning efforts including the ability to provide for overlap
in critical positions at the discretion of the city manager

f) Incorporate programs and initiatives that strengthen Menlo Park’s standing as an employer of choice
to retain highly qualified personnel

2. Provide City services and infrastructure that contribute to quality of life in Menlo Park
a) Prioritize City Council adopted initiatives and strategies that contribute to the quality of life in Menlo

Park
b) Proactively maintain and improve existing infrastructure to minimize maintenance costs and

decrease the City’s greenhouse gas emissions
c) Strive to balance the resources and requirements of each area of the City in an equitable manner
d) Evaluate one-time revenues for highest and best investment recognizing the benefit of leveraging

near term investments for long-term gains in financial sustainability and/or quality of life
e) Commit to continuous improvement in the communication of City financial information through a

variety of media acknowledging that the City’s professional staff and consultants are obligated to
conform to accounting and reporting standards in order to provide balanced financial information that
informs policymakers

Attachment A provides great detail on the proposed changes from fiscal year 2019-20. 

Impact on City Resources 
Preparation of the annual budget is part of the City’s baseline services. Budget preparation for fiscal year 
2020-21 will be more challenging as the City embarked on implementation of a new budget software 
system, then experienced the departure of the city’s analyst responsible for budget preparation and 
analysis.  

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

Attachments 
A. Memorandum from Finance and Budget Manager Dan Jacobson to Administrative Services Director

Lenka Diaz

Report prepared by: 
Nick Pegueros, Assistant City Manager 

Page F7.2



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Finance 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 2/11/2020 
To: Lenka Diaz, Administrative Services Director 
From: Dan Jacobson, Finance and Budget Manager 
Re: Proposed FY 2020–21 foundational budget principles 

In preparation for the City’s budget, staff seeks City Council affirmation of budget principles to guide the 
process of developing the proposed budget. Budget principles were first introduced and approved by the 
City Council in the fiscal year 2013–14 budget and have seen incremental adjustments each subsequent 
fiscal year as a means to reflect new City Council priorities, improve clarity, and systematize budget 
refinements.  

For the fiscal year 2020–21 budget, staff recommends a number of changes intended to more clearly 
communicate the City Council’s direction for budget development and reduce ambiguity. The recommended 
changes restructure the budget principles into foundational principles and action items in recognition that 
the principles extend beyond budget preparation and that there exists a need to identify a number of 
discrete tasks. The recommended foundational principles iterate on the first two budget principles from 
fiscal year 2019-20 and incorporate the concepts from the other budget principles while refining the 
elements inherent in the principles from prior years. The recommended changes are explained in Table 1 
below. Due to the scope of recommended changes, the previously-adopted budget principles and 
recommended foundational principles are shown in full following Table 1. 

Table 1: Recommended budget principle changes 

Fiscal year 2019-20 principle Original 
location Recommended changes Recommended 

location 
Promote the City's long-term fiscal 
sustainability 1 None 1 

Monitor and report on changes in CalPERS 
liabilities and include those changes in the 
City’s 10-year financial forecast; actively 
pursue strategies to reduce pension costs 
as opportunities arise 

1 a 

Remove reference to 10-year forecast; 
add specific action item to pay off all 
unfunded pension liabilities by 2030-
31 

1 a 

Incorporate a budgetary assumption for 
salary savings resulting from employee 
vacancies in the current year budget and 
the 10-year financial forecast 

1 b 
Remove as separate principle and 
incorporate into comprehensive action 
item addressing service provision 

1 d 

Actively pursue revenue enhancements and 
strive to achieve full cost recovery for all 
fee-based services, except where the City 
Council sees a clear public interest in 
providing a subsidy 

1 c 

Remove pursuit of revenue 
enhancements; amend to clarify 
conformity with City Council cost 
recovery policy 

1 c 

Find areas, which may include shared 
services, to provide more efficient use of 
funds 

1 d 

Combine with other principles to 
explicitly communicate the range of 
options in methods of service delivery 
under consideration for City programs; 
amend to clarify the flexibility offered 
under all economic conditions 

1 d 

ATTACHMENT A

Page F7.3



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

2 

Enhance and maintain core City services 
and infrastructure  2 

Emphasize provision of services rather 
than level; add quality of life as a 
express purpose 

2 

Strive to balance the resources and 
requirements of each area of the City in an 
equitable manner 

2 a None 2 c 

Prioritize City Council adopted initiatives 
and strategies that contribute to the quality 
of life in Menlo Park 

2 b None 2 a 

Evaluate one-time revenues for highest and 
best investment 2 c 

Combine with item recognizing benefit 
of near-term investments on long-term 
outcomes 

2 d 

Recognize the benefit of leveraging near 
term investments for long-term gains in 
financial sustainability and/or quality of life 

2 d Remove and combine with previous 
item 2 d 

Manage staff capacity to efficiently deliver 
services to the community 3 

Combine with other principles to 
recognize the importance of the 
service provision outcome 

1 d 

Invest in new technologies that drive 
efficiency and productivity 3 a 

Amend to communicate the priority of 
removing low value-add processes; 
incorporate into fiscal sustainability 
principle 

1 b 

Incorporate programs and initiatives that 
strengthen Menlo Park’s standing as an 
employer of choice to retain and attract 
highly qualified personnel 

3 b Focus on retention of staff; incorporate 
into fiscal sustainability principle 1 f 

Proactively manage the loss of institutional 
knowledge through documentation of 
procedures, practices, and processes and 
succession planning efforts including the 
ability to provide for overlap in critical 
positions at the discretion of the City 
Manager 

3 c Incorporate into fiscal sustainability 
principle 1 e 

Communicate the City's financial position 4 
Incorporate into provision of City 
services as recognition that financial 
communication is a core service 

2 e 

Continue to refine the budget document and 
provide additional finance-related 
communication to enhance the public's 
access to the City's financial information 

4 a 
Amend to recognize different service 
provision options and prioritize pursuit 
of improvements 

2 e 

Document, review, and maintain proper 
internal controls over the City's resources 
with transparency 

4 b 

Incorporate into service provision 
principle; emphasize a commitment to 
improvement and the critical nature of 
properly maintaining and reporting 
financial position 

2 e 

(Not previously included) N/A 

Emphasize proactive maintenance 
and improvement of existing 
infrastructure and emphasize the 
City’s commitment to reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions 

2 b 

Page F7.4



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

3 

Adopted City of Menlo Park fiscal year 2019–20 budget principles 

1. Promote the City’s long-term fiscal sustainability
a) Monitor and report on changes in CalPERS liabilities and include those changes in the City’s 10-

year financial forecast; actively pursue strategies to reduce pension costs as opportunities arise
b) Incorporate a budgetary assumption for salary savings resulting from employee vacancies in the

current year budget and the 10-year financial forecast
c) Actively pursue revenue enhancements and strive to achieve full cost recovery for all fee-based

services, except where the City Council sees a clear public interest in providing a subsidy
d) Find areas, which may include shared services, to provide more efficient use of funds

2. Enhance and maintain core City services and infrastructure
a) Strive to balance the resources and requirements of each area of the City in an equitable manner
b) Prioritize City Council adopted initiatives and strategies that contribute to the quality of life in Menlo

Park
c) Evaluate one-time revenues for highest and best investment
d) Recognize the benefit of leveraging near term investments for long-term gains in financial

sustainability and/or quality of life
3. Manage staff capacity to efficiently deliver services to the community

a) Invest in new technologies that drive efficiency and productivity
b) Incorporate programs and initiatives that strengthen Menlo Park’s standing as an employer of choice

to retain and attract highly qualified personnel
c) Proactively manage the loss of institutional knowledge through documentation of procedures,

practices, and processes and succession planning efforts including the ability to provide for overlap
in critical positions at the discretion of the City Manager

4. Communicate the City’s financial position
a) Continue to refine the budget document and provide additional finance-related communication to

enhance the public’s access to the City’s financial information
b) Document, review, and maintain proper internal controls over the City’s resources with transparency

Proposed City of Menlo Park’s foundational principles and action items for the fiscal year 2020-21 budget: 

1. Promote the City’s long-term fiscal sustainability
a) Monitor and report on changes in CalPERS liabilities and incorporate full payoff of unfunded pension

liabilities by 2030-31; adjusted annually to reflect experience and assumption changes in the
actuarial models

b) Invest in technologies that minimize low value-add processes and most efficiently utilize our talented
staff

c) Strive to achieve City Council cost recovery goals for all fee-based services
d) Continue to evaluate the most cost-effective method to provide services at a specified level that

provide the City with flexibility in all economic conditions, including the use of contracted services,
shared services, and regular and limited-term employees

e) Proactively manage the loss of institutional knowledge through documentation of procedures,

Page F7.5



City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

4 

practices, and processes and succession planning efforts including the ability to provide for overlap 
in critical positions at the discretion of the City Manager 

f) Incorporate programs and initiatives that strengthen Menlo Park’s standing as an employer of choice
to retain highly qualified personnel

2. Provide City services and infrastructure that contribute to quality of life in Menlo Park
a) Prioritize City Council adopted initiatives and strategies that contribute to the quality of life in Menlo

Park
b) Proactively maintain and improve existing infrastructure to minimize maintenance costs and

decrease the City’s greenhouse gas emissions
c) Strive to balance the resources and requirements of each area of the City in an equitable manner
d) Evaluate one-time revenues for highest and best investment recognizing the benefit of leveraging

near term investments for long-term gains in financial sustainability and/or quality of life
e) Commit to continuous improvement in the communication of City financial information through a

variety of media acknowledging that the City’s professional staff and consultants are obligated to
conform to accounting and reporting standards in order to provide balanced financial information that
informs policymakers

Page F7.6



City Attorney 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number: 20-048-CC 

Public Hearing: Adoption of urgency Ordinance No. 1066 
Amending Chapter 16.79 and Section 16.04.295 
[Definition of Dwelling Unit, Secondary] of the 
Menlo Park Municipal Code to comply with recent 
State Legislation pertaining to accessory dwelling 
units and junior accessory dwelling units and 
direction regarding additional updates 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
1. Adopt the attached urgency ordinance amending Chapter 16.79 and Section 16.04.295 [Definition of

Dwelling Unit, Secondary] of the Menlo Park Municipal Code to comply with recent State legislation
pertaining to accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units (Attachment A.)

2. Provide direction on additional steps, including time frame for tracking efficacy of urgency ordinance,
efficiently leveraging possible grant funds and coordination between advisory committee roles. (This
direction can be deferred to a subsequent City Council meeting, but is included here to allow for
coordination between City Council goals and advisory commission work.)

Policy Issues 
To respond to the current state housing crisis, the Legislature passed a series of bills designed to 
encourage the production of accessory dwelling units (ADU) and junior accessory dwelling units (JADU.) 
This legislation went into effect January 1. Cities are expected to update their local ordinances to comply 
with the state legislation. If cities fail to conform their local ordinances, applicants are permitted to develop 
under the state legislation. The attached ordinance is drafted to comply with the more permissive state 
regulations. The attached ordinance is consistent with the City Council Districts 2-5 subcommittee’s 
recommendation to enact a more permissive ADU ordinance. 

Background 
Governor Newsom signed six bills related to ADUs (previously referred to as secondary dwelling units in 
Menlo Park.) These new laws became effective January 1 and pre-empt all local ordinances that do not 
comply with the new standards. The City of Menlo Park’s ADU regulations require updating to comply with 
state law. If the City does not update its existing ordinance, the new state laws automatically apply. The 
state laws are unclear in some areas and many cities are struggling with how to implement them. The 
Department of Housing and Development (HCD) announced that it would be publishing a model 
ordinance, but HCD has not yet published one given the complexities and inconsistencies within the state 
law.  

AGENDA ITEM G-1

Page G1.1



Staff Report #: 20-048-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Due to the uncertainties surrounding the enforceability of cities’ existing noncompliant ADU ordinances, 
some cities are electing to adopt an urgency ordinance to bring their local codes into compliance. By 
adopting an urgency ordinance, a city may ensure that its local ordinance is consistent with the broad 
mandates of state law. More importantly, it allows the city to clarify the gaps and uncertainties contained in 
state law and to incorporate local regulations to protect long-standing community values. The urgency 
ordinance amends local ADU/JADU standards needed to comply with state law, carries forward former 
code provisions which previously exceeded state law, and fills in the gaps contained in state law. For 
example, state law requires cities to approve an 800 square foot minimum ADU, but contains other 
provisions inferring that cities must permit an 850 square foot ADU if the unit contains one bedroom and up 
to 1,000 square feet ADU if the unit provides more than one bedroom. Presumably state law intended to 
distinguish between these size categories, but as written the language is confusing and arguably 
inconsistent. A local ordinance is needed to reconcile these provisions and provide clarity for applicants 
and the public. 
 
The attached urgency ordinance requires approval from four-fifths of the City Council and becomes 
effective immediately. 
 
Summary of new legislation 
Below is a summary of the state-mandated changes with references to the five relevant bills: 
 
• AB 68 (Ting) / AB 881 (Bloom) / SB 13 (Wieckowski:) Together these three bills amend existing ADU 

law as follows: 
• One ADU and one JADU permitted by right on a single-family lot, subject to certain constraints. 
• ADUs allowed by right in multifamily and mixed-use zones permitting residential. Up to two 

detached ADUs, plus conversion of uninhabited spaces for multiple ADUs (up to 25 percent of 
units in multifamily buildings.) 

• No minimum lot size for ADUs. 
• Zero setback if conversion of an existing structure at property line. 
• Maximum 4 feet side and rear setbacks for newly constructed ADUs. 
• Lot coverage, floor ratios or open space requirements must allow at least an 800 square feet ADU. 
• Minimum 16 feet height allowed. 
• Cannot set maximum square footage less than 850 for one-bedroom ADU, or 1,000 square feet for 

two+ bedrooms. 
• JADUs are no longer limited to smaller kitchen appliances and sewer connections. 
• Sixty-day permit processing timeline. 
• No replacement parking for garage conversions. 
• Proximity to transit must be “walkable” to qualify for parking waiver. 
• No impact fees on ADUs less than 750 square feet, if larger, impact fees to be proportional to main 

house. 
• Five-year moratorium on local owner-occupancy restrictions until January 1, 2025. 
• Five-year stay of building code enforcement available on unpermitted ADUs if they meet health 

and safety standards. 
• ADUs count toward RHNA. 
• No short-term rentals of ADUs or JADUs for newly created units. 
• HCD and attorney general can enforce compliance if new local ordinance is out of compliance, but 

cities must be given 30-day right to cure or state findings to support ordinance. 
 

Page G1.2



Staff Report #: 20-048-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

• AB 670 (Friedman:) Homeowners associations must allow ADUs and JADUs. 
• AB 671 (Friedman:) Housing elements will need to incentivize and promote the creation of ADUs at all 

income levels. HCD will develop, and post, a list of existing state grants and financial incentives for 
ADUs. 

•  AB 587 (Friedman:) Allows a nonprofit to separately convey title to ADUs. This is known as the 
“Habitat for Humanity” exception. Staff has included a local provision in case the need arises. 

 
Planning Commission study session 
On February 10, the Planning Commission conducted a study session on the new legislation. The 
Commissioners all seemed to be generally in favor of making ADUs easier and going beyond the 
requirements of state law. One commissioner noted a desire to conduct more community engagement 
before adopting an urgency ordinance. The following were the main discussion items: 
 
• A desire to work with the Housing Commission on possible ordinance updates  
• Allowing ADUs with two bathrooms 
• The possibility of increasing height limits and allowing two-story ADUs, especially over garages or on 

larger lots 
• Property owners’ fears of trying to legalize existing ADUs because of building code requirements 
• Encouraging the building official to waive some building code requirements for conversions and 

legalizations of existing ADUs 
• Providing standard ADU plans to the public  
• Possible rent caps 
• Impacts on schools if ADUs don’t pay school impact fees 

 
Analysis 
While the Planning Commission reviews all changes to Title 16 ordinances, the adoption of an urgency 
ordinance is not subject to Planning Commission review.  
 
Overview of urgency ordinance 
The proposed urgency ordinance (Attachment A) primarily includes modifications to the Menlo Park 
Municipal Code Title 16 necessary to comply with state law. In cases where the state law is unclear or 
contains gaps, the City’s local ordinance implements clarifying changes. The urgency ordinance also 
carries forward aspects of the current City ordinance that are more permissive than state law. Key 
modifications are as follows: 
• Includes definitions for ADU, detached ADU, attached ADU, interior ADU, JADU 
• Deletes requirements regarding minimum lot sizes. 
• Increases the number of ADUs that can be developed on a single-family lot to two (one exterior and 

one interior.) 
• Allows ADUs in multifamily lots consistent with state law. 
• For ADUs 800 square feet or less, modifies existing side and rear setback regulations throughout the 

ordinance that exceed the 4-foot setbacks authorized by state law. 
• Updates FAR, lot coverage, and maximum unit size to permit at least an 800 square feet ADU. 
• Adds new categories of ADUs that must be ministerially approved: including one JADU or interior ADU 

plus one detached ADU; non-livable space in multifamily buildings; up to two detached ADUs on 
multifamily lots. 

• Updated parking requirements to comply with state law. 

Page G1.3



Staff Report #: 20-048-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

• Eliminates subjective design compatibility regulations.  
• Removes owner-occupancy requirements for ADUs built after January 1 and maintains the previous 

provisions for non-tenancy status for units issued a building permit before January 1. 
• Removes all discretionary processes, except for ADUs greater than 1,000 square feet. 
• Creates a new category of ADUs called JADUs and allows for permitting. 
• Decreases the permit processing time from 120 days to 60 days. 
• Deleted mitigation monitoring and reporting program (MMRP) requirement for consistency with CEQA 

exemption (Public Resources Code Section 21080.17.) 
 

A table summarizing the ordinance changes is included as Attachment B. 

The majority of the above changes are required to implement state law. Further, some of the changes are 
needed to clarify state law, as the new legislation contains many ambiguous and internally inconsistent 
provisions. While the Legislature is expected to adopt further cleanup legislation, it has not done so yet. 
Since Menlo Park currently has several ADU applications pending, adopting the local updates on an 
urgency basis will allow the City to process current and future applications with more clarity. 

HCD approval 
State law now requires HCD to approve all newly adopted ADU ordinances. The City is not aware of any 
City ordinance that has yet been approved by HCD. The City’s urgency ordinance contains a “savings 
clause” providing that to the extent there is any inconsistency between the City’s ordinance and the state 
law, state law shall govern. As mentioned, the new state law is extremely complicated and unclear in 
places. The City has made its best effort at interpreting and implementing the state law (and even going 
beyond the state law in places where previous relaxed regulations existed,) but there is no guarantee that 
HCD will agree with the City’s interpretations. To help gain HCD approval, the urgency ordinance 
contains a savings clause providing that to the extent our local ordinance is inconsistent with state law, 
the state law controls. (See ordinance section 16.79.130.) 
 
Next steps 
The state law permits significantly more ADUs than currently allowed under the City’s Code. In fact, many 
of the suggestions for expanding ADU production previously discussed by the Planning Commission and 
Housing Commission have been incorporated into state law. The Housing Endowment and Regional Trust 
of San Mateo County (HEART) is developing a set of off-the-shelf ADU design plans for public use. It is 
likely other toolkits will be developed.  
 
The City may elect to adopt further regulations to incentivize ADU production. Further, staff anticipates the 
need for additional cleanup changes to address items not specifically spelled out in the state legislation, 
internal consistency in the zoning code (e.g., updating ‘secondary dwelling unit’ to accessory dwelling unit’ 
in each of the single-family residential zoning districts and adding ADUs as a permitted use in the 
multifamily and mixed-use districts,) and to address issues that arise in connection with implementing 
comprehensive state law changes on an expedited basis.  
 
Both the Planning Commission and Housing Commission have expressed interest in forming 
subcommittees to work on additional updates; however, many of the issues raised by the committees have 
been addressed through the urgency ordinance. 21 Elements has also been leading a county wide effort to 
decipher and implement the new State law changes. In addition, the City has applied for an SB 2 grant and 
plans to apply for a further HCD grant both of which could help fund consultant services to assist with ADU 
development. Finally, the Legislature plans on adopting some additional ADU clean up legislation. 
 

Page G1.4



Staff Report #: 20-048-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

At this point, staff recommends giving the urgency ordinance some time to take effect. The changes 
adopted through the urgency ordinance are quite substantial and staff resources will be required to 
effectively roll out. Once the grant funding has been secured, staff can come back to the City Council with 
suggestions on how to best leverage the funds and utilize the City’s advisory committees. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
Additional planning and legal time would likely be needed during implementation of the new regulations. 
In addition, staff or consultant resources would likely be needed to proceed with an ADU reach code or 
development of ADU construction incentives, depending on the prioritization of the City Council’s work 
plan.  

 
Environmental Review 
This urgency ordinance implements new state law requirements related to ADUs and JADUs as 
established in Government Code Section 65852.2. The ordinance is therefore statutorily exempt from 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code 
Section 21080.17, which states that CEQA does not apply to a city’s adoption of an ordinance to 
implement the provisions of Government Code Section 65852.2. The City Council hereby finds that this 
ordinance is not subject to the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines 
sections 15061(b)(3,) 15301, 15302 and 15305 because it constitutes minor adjustments to the City’s 
zoning ordinance to implement state law requirements related to ADUs and JADUs which will likely result 
in additional dwelling units dispersed throughout the City over the course of a number of years. As such, it 
can be seen with certainty that the proposed action will not have the potential for causing a significant 
effect on the environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Public notification also consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper 
and an email to potentially interested parties.  

 
Attachments 
A. Urgency Ordinance No. 1066 adopting state compliant ADU/JADU regulations 
B. Summary table showing new ADU requirements in single-family districts 
 
Report prepared by: 
Cara Silver, Assistant City Attorney 
Deanna Chow, Interim Community Development Director 

Page G1.5



ORDINANCE NO. 1066 
 

URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK AMENDING CHAPTER 16.79 [SECONDARY 
DWELLING UNITS] AND SECTION 16.04.295 [DEFINITION OF 
DWELLING UNIT, SECONDARY] OF THE MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO COMPLY WITH RECENT STATE LEGISLATION 
PERTAINING TO ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND JUNIOR 
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS  

 
 The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does hereby ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS.   
 
A. California is experiencing a housing supply crisis, with housing demand far 
outstripping supply. In 2018, California ranked 49th out of the 50 states in housing units 
per capita. 
 
B.  Consequently, existing housing in this state, especially in its largest cities, has 
become very expensive. Seven of the 10 most expensive real estate markets in the 
United States are in California. Menlo Park’s median house price according to Zillow is 
$2,241,112. 
 
C. California is also experiencing rapid year-over-year rent growth with three cities 
in the state having had overall rent growth of 10 percent or more year-over-year, and of 
the 50 United States cities with the highest United States rents, 33 are cities in 
California. 
 
D.  California needs an estimated 180,000 additional homes annually to keep up with 
population growth, and the Governor has called for 3.5 million new homes to be built 
over the next 7 years. 
 
E.  The State of California has enacted legislation to encourage the construction of 
accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units. The new ADU state 
legislation consists of five bills which amend and supplement existing legislation. The 
five bills were rushed through the legislative process to address the housing supply 
crisis. While the intent of the new legislation is clear, the legislation itself is ambiguous, 
internally inconsistent, and incomplete. Further it does not take into account individual 
communities’ existing zoning and land uses and local values.  
 
F. Government Code Section 65852.2 requires cities to adopt accessory dwelling 
unit zoning regulations consistent with the new legislation but does not provide cities 
sufficient time to go through their normal zoning process. If cities fail to adopt compliant 
local ADU ordinances, the state law provisions preempt inconsistent local regulations 
and in some cases could override a city’s entire ADU code. The effect of this 
preemption would be to cause confusion among applicants and planning staff which 

ATTACHMENT A

Page G1.6



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 2 of 17 

would ultimately defeat the intent of the new legislation which is to encourage additional 
and expedient construction of new housing. 
 
G. The purpose and intent of the proposed Urgency Ordinance is to implement the 
new accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units legislation to resolve 
ambiguities and allow for construction of new housing units in a transparent and 
expedient manner, while promoting the health, safety, and well-being of the City and its 
residents. 
 
H. This ordinance is enacted under the authority granted to cities by Article XI, 
Section 7 of the California Constitution and Government Code Section 37100, and the 
authority provided to cities to regulate by ordinance the uses of land and the intensity or 
land use by Government Code sections 65850. 
 
I.  An urgency ordinance that is effective immediately is necessary to avoid an 
immediate threat to public peace, health, and safety as failure to adopt this urgency 
ordinance could result in the exacerbation of the current housing supply crisis, 
nullification of the local values expressed in the City’s ADU regulations and result in 
construction of housing inconsistent with well-established community values. 
 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT OF CODE. Chapter 16.79 [Secondary Dwelling Units] of 
Title 16 [Zoning] is hereby amended as follows: 

 
Chapter 16.79 

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS 

Sections: 
16.79.010  Purpose. 
16.79.020 Definitions. 
16.79.030 Permitted use. 
16.79.040 Conditional use 
16.79.050 Regulations applicable to single family districts. 
16.79.060 Additional development standards. 
16.79.070 Regulations applicable to JADUs 
16.79.080 Parking. 
16.79.090 Regulations applicable to multi-family districts. 
16.79.100 Other standards. 
16.79.110 Processing requirements. 
16.79.120 Delay in enforcement of unpermitted ADUs. 
16.79.130 Compliance with State Law 
 

 
16.79.010. Purpose. 
1.    Increase the supply of smaller units and rental housing units by allowing accessory 
dwelling units to locate on lots which contain existing or proposed single-family 
dwellings and existing two-family and multifamily dwellings; 

Page G1.7



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 3 of 17 

2.    Establish standards for accessory dwelling units to ensure that they are compatible 
with existing neighborhoods; and 
 
3.    Comply with state law regarding accessory dwelling units (California Government 
Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22). 
 
 
16.79.020. Definitions 
In addition to the terms defined in Chapter 16.04 (Definitions), the following terms shall 
have the following meanings: 
 
1. “Accessory dwelling unit” (ADU) means an attached or a detached residential 
dwelling unit that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons 
and is located on a lot with a proposed or existing primary residence. The unit shall 
contain permanent provisions for: 

a. Living, 
b. Sleeping, 
c. Eating,  
d. Cooking,  
e. Sanitation, 
f. Exterior access separate from the primary dwelling.  

 
The following units are also considered ADUs: 

a. An efficiency unit as defined in the building code; and 
b. A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety 

Code. 
 
2. "Attached accessory dwelling unit" means an accessory dwelling unit that is 
constructed as a physical expansion (i.e., addition) of an existing primary dwelling unit, 
including construction of a new basement underneath a primary dwelling unit to 
accommodate an ADU. In some cases attached accessory dwelling unit is used 
interchangeably with “interior accessory dwelling unit.” 

 
Figure 1: Attached accessory dwelling unit 
 
3. "Detached accessory dwelling unit" means a dwelling unit that is (1) constructed as a 
separate structure from the primary dwelling unit; (2) contained within the existing space 
of an accessory structure; or (3) constructed as an addition to an existing or proposed 
accessory building. 
 

Page G1.8



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 4 of 17 

 
Figure 2: Detached accessory dwelling unit 
 
4. "Interior accessory dwelling unit" means a dwelling unit  that is (1) contained within 
the existing space of a primary dwelling unit, including within its living area, basement, 
or attached garage; (2) constructed as part of a proposed primary dwelling unit; or (3) 
created from non-livable space of a multifamily dwelling. In some cases, an interior 
accessory dwelling unit is used interchangeably with “attached accessory dwelling unit.” 

 
Figure 3: Interior accessory dwelling unit 
 
5. "Junior accessory dwelling unit” (JADU) means a dwelling unit that is no more than 
500 square feet in size and contained entirely within an existing or proposed single-
family dwelling. A JADU shall include cooking facility with appliances and a food 
preparation counter and storage cabinets that are of reasonable size in relation to the 
size of the JADU. A JADU may include separate sanitation facilities or may share 
sanitation facilities with the primary dwelling. A JADU must have exterior access 
separate from the primary dwelling. 
 
6. “Public transit” means a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train 
station, where the public may access buses, trains, subways, and other forms of 
transportation that charge set fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to the public. 
 
16. 79.030 Permitted Uses. 
1. Attached or Interior ADUs. Attached or interior ADUs which do not exceed 800 
square feet or 50% of an existing primary dwelling, whichever is greater, and have no 
more than one bedroom, and ADU’s greater than 850 square feet and no more than 
1,000 square feet and have up to two bedrooms are a permitted use in all zoning 
districts which allow single-family, multi-family or mixed use which permits residential 
use. 
 
2. Detached ADUs. Detached ADUs which do not exceed 850 square feet and have no 
more than one bedroom and ADU’s greater than 850 square feet and no more than 
1,000 square feet and have up to two bedrooms are a permitted use in all zoning 

Page G1.9



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 5 of 17 

districts which allow single-family, multi-family or mixed use which permits residential 
use. 
 
3. JADUs. JADUs are a permitted use in all single-family districts. 
 
16.79.040 Conditional Uses. 
Secondary dwelling units that require modification to the development regulations set 
forth in this chapter, except for Sections 16.79. 050 (1), Number of units, and 16.79.100 
(3), Subdivision, are conditionally permitted in the single-family residential zoning 
districts, subject to the use permit requirements of Chapter 16.82. 
 
16.79.050. Regulations applicable to single-family districts 
1. Number of units.  A maximum of three units, including the primary dwelling, shall be 
allowed on a single-family lot. An applicant may have only one JADU or 
attached/interior ADU on a single-family lot, but not both.  

 
2. Interior/Attached ADUs.  One interior ADU or one attached ADU per single-family lot 
is permitted, subject to the following requirements:  

 
a. Access. The ADU must have exterior access independent of the main unit.  
 
b. Setbacks.  

i. For interior ADUs created within the living space of an existing single 
family home, the side and rear setbacks must be sufficient for fire and safety.  

ii. For new attached ADUs, the side and rear setbacks shall be four (4) 
feet. 

iii. Interior and attached ADUs shall comply with the front yard setback 
applicable to the primary dwelling. 
 
c. Size. The total floor area of an attached or interior ADU may not exceed 50% 
of an existing primary home or 800 square feet, whichever is greater.  
 
d. Overall floor area limit/lot coverage.  An ADU may exceed the total floor area 
and/or building coverage applicable to the parcel by up to 800 square feet 
provided the ADU is built concurrently with, or after, the existing or proposed 
primary unit and other structures on site.  
 
e. Height. An ADU may not exceed the maximum height allowed for the primary 
dwelling and must comply with the daylight plane requirement. 

 
3. Detached ADUs.  One detached ADU per single-family lot is permitted, subject to the 
following requirements: 
 

a. Detached ADUs 800 square feet or less in size: 

Page G1.10



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 6 of 17 

i. Setbacks. Detached ADUs 800 square feet or less in size shall not 
encroach into a four-foot side and rear yard setback. The ADU shall comply with 
the front yard setback applicable to the primary dwelling. 
 

ii. Overall floor area/parcel coverage. An ADU 800 square feet or less in 
size may exceed the total floor area and/or building coverage applicable to the 
parcel by up to 800 square feet provided the ADU is built concurrently with, or 
after, the existing or proposed primary unit and other structures on site.  
 

iii. Height. An ADU may not exceed 16 feet in height and is exempt from 
the daylight plan requirement applicable to the primary dwelling.  

 
iv. Conversions. If any of the regulations conflict with the regulations in 

Section 16.79.060(2), an ADU created by conversion of an existing building shall 
be subject to Section 16.79.060 (2). 
 
b. Detached ADUs greater than 800 square feet in size: 

i. Setbacks. A detached ADU greater than 800 square feet in size shall 
meet the side setback applicable to the primary dwelling and not encroach into a 
ten-foot rear yard setback. The ADU shall comply with the front yard setback 
applicable to the primary dwelling. 
 

ii. Size. An ADU may not exceed a total floor area of 1,000 square feet. 
ADUs between 850 square feet and 1,000 square may provide up to two 
bedrooms.  

 
iii. Overall floor area/parcel coverage. An ADU over 800 square feet in 

size may not exceed the total floor area and/or building coverage applicable to 
the parcel.  

 
iv. Height. An ADU may not exceed 17 feet in height and must comply with 

the daylight plane that shall begin at a horizontal line nine (9) feet, six (6) inches 
above the average natural grade at a line three (3) feet from the side property 
lines and shall slope inwards at a forty-five (45) degree angle. There are no 
permitted intrusions into the daylight plane. "Average natural grade" means the 
average of the highest and lowest points of the natural grade of the portion of the 
lot directly below a line three (3) feet from the side property lines. . 

 
v. Conversions. If any of the regulations conflict with the regulations in 

Section 16.79.060(2), an ADU created by conversion of an existing building shall 
be subject to Section 16.79.060 (2). 
 

16.79.060. Additional development standards 
1. Lot size. No minimum lot size shall be required for a newly created ADU. 
 

Page G1.11



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 7 of 17 

2. Conversions. No setbacks shall be required for ADU conversions of (1) existing living 
space in the primary dwelling (2) accessory buildings constructed in the same location 
and to the same dimensions (3) attached or detached garages in single-family 
neighborhoods. 

 
3. Other standards. Except as specified in this chapter, ADUs shall comply with lot 
coverage, floor area limit, open space and other zoning standards applicable to the 
primary dwelling, except in no event shall the application of any of these standards 
preclude at least an 800 square foot ADU that is up to 16 feet in height. 
 
16.79.070. Regulations applicable to JADUs  
1.  A permitted junior accessory dwelling unit must be constructed within the walls of the 
existing or proposed primary dwelling unit. 
 
2. A JADU may not exceed 500 square feet. 
 
3. No minimum lot size shall be required for a JADU. 
 
4. The bathroom may be shared with the primary dwelling or may be separate (if 
separate it counts towards 500 sf.) 
 
5. A JADU must have a separate entrance from the primary dwelling. 
 
6. No parking is required for the JADU. 
 
7. Owner occupancy required. The property owner must reside in either the remaining 
portion of the primary dwelling unit or the newly created JADU. Owner-occupancy shall 
not be required if the owner is another governmental agency, land trust, or housing 
organization. 
 
8. The owner must record a deed restriction, which shall run with the land, and shall 
include both of the following: 

a. A prohibition on the sale of the junior accessory dwelling unit separate from 
the sale of the single-family residence, including a statement that the deed restriction 
may be enforced against future purchasers. 

b. A restriction on the size and attributes of the junior accessory dwelling unit that 
conforms with this chapter. 
 
16.79.080. Parking  
1. An ADU must provide one off-street parking space. The parking space may be 
covered or uncovered, in any configuration and may be located in the front, side or rear 
setback. 
 
2. If off-street parking is removed to allow for an ADU in a single-family district, the on-
site parking need not be replaced. 

 

Page G1.12



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 8 of 17 

3. If the garage is converted to an ADU, no replacement parking for the primary dwelling 
in a single-family district is required.  

 
4. No parking for the ADU is required if the ADU is: 

a. Located within ½ mile walking distance of public transit; 
b. Located within an architecturally and historically significant historic district; 
c. An interior ADU; 
d. Not eligible for on-street parking permits, but on-street permits are available; or 
e. Within one block of a car share vehicle. 

 
16. 79.090. Regulations applicable to multi-family districts  
1. Interior ADUs. ADUs are allowed within portions of existing multifamily dwelling 
structures that are not used as livable space including storage rooms, boiler rooms, 
passageways, attics, basements, and garages, subject to the following requirements: 
 

a. Number of ADU’s. At least one ADU within an existing multifamily building 
shall be permitted and no more than 25 percent of the existing multifamily dwelling units 
may take advantage of developing ADUs under this provision. 

 
b. Building Standards. Each newly created ADU unit must comply with California 

building standards and related requirements. 
 

c. Livable space conversions prohibited. Existing livable space may not be 
converted into a full or partial ADU. 
 

d. JADUs prohibited. JADUs are not permitted.  
 
2. Detached ADUs. Up to 2 detached ADUs are permitted on a multi-family lot that has 
an existing multifamily building subject to the following requirements: 
 

a. Setbacks. The maximum rear and side yard setback is four feet. The front 
setback shall be the same as applicable to the multi-family building; 

 
b. Height. The maximum height is 16 feet. 
 
c. Up to 2 detached ADUs are permitted on a multi-family lot in addition to the 

Interior ADU’s described above. 
 
 
16.79.100. Other requirements 
1. Tenancy. For ADUs built after January 1, 2020, no owner occupancy requirements 
shall apply to either the primary dwelling or the ADU.  For ADUs built before January 1, 
2020, either the main dwelling or the secondary dwelling unit shall be occupied by the 
property owner when both units are occupied as dwelling units. If a property owner does 
not occupy one (1) of the dwelling units, the property owner may apply for a nontenancy 
status for a term of one (1) year through a registration process established by the 

Page G1.13



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 9 of 17 

community development director. To be eligible for the registration process, a property 
owner must have lived at the subject property for a minimum of two (2) years of the 
previous five (5) years from the date of application. The property owner may renew the 
registration annually, not to exceed four (4) years in total, subject to the review and 
approval of the community development director, pursuant to the following criteria and 
process established by the community development director: 
 

a. The application for the registration and renewal(s) shall be accompanied by a 
fee, set by the city council. 

 
b. The application for registration and renewal shall state the reason for the 

request and provide supporting documentation. The registration shall be approved for 
any of the following reasons: (i) temporary job relocation, with the intent to return, (ii) 
relocation for school (e.g., mid-year career change), and (iii) physically unable to live in 
the house. 

 
c.  The application shall provide a property management plan that includes the 

name and contact information to address issues or concerns about the use of the 
property should they arise. The plan should also include information about parking, 
including (i) a site plan with the parking layout for the property, (ii) how parking will be 
assigned between tenants, and (iii) an action plan that demonstrates how parking 
issues will be resolved effectively and efficiently between tenants if tandem parking is 
provided. 

 
d.  A use permit is required for nontenancy status longer than four (4) years or for 

waiver of the requirement that the owner reside in the unit for not less than two (2) of 
the previous five (5) years prior to the date of application or for a reason other than 
those stated in subsection (1)(b) of this section.  

 
2. Short-term rentals. For ADUs built after January 1, 2020, the rental of an ADU must 
be for a term longer than 30 days. Short-term ADU rental for less than 30 days is 
prohibited. 

 
3. Subdivision. An ADU may be rented separately from the primary dwelling but may not 
be sold or otherwise conveyed separately from the primary residence. (This requirement 
shall not apply to a unit complying with AB 587 (i.e. “Habitat for Humanity” exception).) 
 
 
16.79.110. Delay in enforcement of unpermitted ADUs.  For any unpermitted ADU 
built before January 1, 2020, upon an owner’s request, the City’s Building Official shall 
delay enforcing any building standards if the Building Official determines that correcting 
the violation is not necessary to protect health and safety. 
 
16. 79.120 Application review and approval process. Each development of an ADU 
or JADU requires review for compliance with this chapter as part of the building permit 
review process for the creation of an ADU or JADU. 

Page G1.14



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 10 of 17 

 
1.   Application. Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit application 
for the ADU or JADU, the ADU/JADU checklist, which demonstrates compliance with all 
of the ADU/JADU development regulations, shall be submitted. The application shall 
include plans showing the details of the proposed unit per submittal guidelines 
established by the community development director. 

2. Compliance Determination. The community development director or designee shall 
make a determination of compliance prior to issuance of the building permit for the 
ADU/JADU. The determination of the community development director is final and not 
subject to appeal. 

3. All applications for ADU/JADUs that meet and comply with the requirements under 
this chapter shall be approved without discretionary review or a hearing within sixty (60) 
days after receipt of a substantially complete application. The application shall be 
denied if the proposed ADU/JADU does not comply with all applicable requirements of 
this chapter or it may be conditionally approved subject to conditions that will bring the 
proposed secondary dwelling unit into compliance with this chapter. 

16.79.130 Compliance with State Law. To the extent any provision of this ordinance is 
inconsistent with State law governing ADUs or JADUs, the applicable State law shall 
govern. 
 

 
16.79.010 Purpose. 
The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the creation of secondary dwelling units 

in single-family residential zones and to set forth criteria and regulations of those 
secondary dwelling units. 

 
16.79.020 Permitted use. 
Secondary dwelling units as defined in Section 16.04.295 are a permitted use in the 

city’s single-family residential zoning districts for residential use that is consistent with 
the city’s general plan and the specific zone for the lot on which the secondary dwelling 
unit is to be located. Secondary dwelling units must comply with the development 
standards applicable to the single-family zoning district in which the lot is located, 
including, but not limited to, parking, height, setback, lot coverage, landscape, 
architectural review, maximum size, and other standards that prevent adverse impacts 
on any real property that is listed in the California Register of Historic Places, except as 
otherwise provided elsewhere in this chapter. 
 

16.79.030 Conditional use. 
Secondary dwelling units that require modification to the development regulations 

set forth in this chapter, except for Sections 16.79.040(3), Density, and (4), Subdivision, 
are conditionally permitted in the single-family residential zoning districts, subject to the 
use permit requirements of Chapter 16.82. 
 

Page G1.15



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 11 of 17 

16.79.040 Development and use regulations. 
Secondary dwelling units are permitted within single-family residential zones, subject 

to the following standards, restrictions and regulations. Development and use 
regulations for secondary dwelling units are as follows: 

 
(1) Minimum lot area: six thousand (6,000) square feet. 

 
(2)    Primary Residence. 

(A)    A single-family residence must be located on the lot. 
 
(B)    The secondary dwelling unit may not be sold separately from the 
primary residence. 
 

(3)    Density. No more than one (1) secondary dwelling unit may be allowed on any 
one (1) lot. 
 
(4) Subdivision. A lot having a secondary dwelling unit may not be subdivided in a 
manner that would allow for the main dwelling and secondary dwelling unit to be 
located on separate lots that do not meet the minimum lot area, width and/or depth 
required by the single-family zoning district in which the lot is located. 
 
(5)    Minimum Yards. 
 

(A)    Attached secondary dwelling units shall comply with all minimum yard 
requirements for the main dwelling established by the single-family zoning 
district in which the lot is located; 
 
(B)    Detached secondary dwelling units shall comply with all minimum yard 
requirements for the main dwelling established by the single-family zoning 
district in which the lot is located, with the exception that the minimum rear 
yard is ten (10) feet. Furthermore, the interior side and rear yards may be 
reduced to five (5) feet, subject to written approval of the owner(s) of the 
contiguous property abutting the portion of the encroaching structure. If the 
contiguous interior side or rear property line is an alley, the minimum setback 
is five (5) feet. If a secondary dwelling unit is constructed above an existing 
detached garage, the side and rear yard setback is five (5) feet. The 
provisions of Section 16.62.020(1) shall not apply to a detached secondary 
dwelling unit. 

(6)    Unit Size. 
 

(A)    Detached secondary dwelling units shall not exceed six hundred forty 
(640) square feet, except buildings complying with all aspects of the disabled 
access requirements for kitchens, bathrooms, and accessible routes 
established in the California Building Code for adaptable residential dwelling 
units shall have a maximum square footage of seven hundred (700) square 
feet. 

Page G1.16



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 12 of 17 

 
(B)    Attached secondary dwelling units shall not exceed fifty percent (50%) 
of the existing living area, with a maximum increase in floor area of six 
hundred forty (640) square feet, except buildings complying with all aspects of 
the disabled access requirements for kitchens, bathrooms, and accessible 
routes established in the California Building Code for adaptable residential 
dwelling units shall have a maximum square footage of seven hundred (700) 
square feet. 

 
(C)    All secondary dwelling units shall be limited to studio or one (1) 
bedroom units and one (1) bathroom. 

 
(D)    No passageway shall be required in conjunction with the construction of 
a secondary dwelling unit. 

 
(E)    Secondary dwelling units shall count towards the total floor area for the 
lot, and the entire floor area of all buildings may not exceed the permitted 
floor area limit (FAL) established by the single-family zoning district in which 
the lot is located. 

 
(7)    Building Coverage. Secondary dwelling units shall count towards the total 
building coverage for the lot, and the entire building coverage of all buildings may 
not exceed the permitted building coverage established by the single-family zoning 
district in which the lot is located. 
 
(8)    Height. The maximum permitted height of a secondary dwelling unit is the 
same as the maximum permitted height for the single-family zoning district in which 
the lot is located, except that in no instance shall the maximum total height for any 
detached secondary dwelling unit exceed seventeen (17) feet. 
 
(9)    Daylight Plane. A daylight plane shall begin at a horizontal line nine (9) feet, six 
(6) inches above the average natural grade at a line three (3) feet from the side 
property lines and shall slope inwards at a forty-five (45) degree angle. There are no 
permitted intrusions into the daylight plane. "Average natural grade" means the 
average of the highest and lowest points of the natural grade of the portion of the lot 
directly below a line three (3) feet from the side property lines. 
(10)    Parking. One (1) off-street parking space is required, except as provided in 
subsection (11) of this section (Parking Exceptions), in addition to the required 
parking for the main dwelling unit, that may be provided in the following 
configurations and areas in addition to the areas allowed for the main dwelling: 
 

(A)    In tandem, meaning one (1) car located directly behind another car, 
including a single-car driveway leading to two (2) required parking spaces for 
the main dwelling; 

 
(B)    Within required interior side yards; 

Page G1.17



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 13 of 17 

 
(C)    Within required front yards if no more than five hundred (500) square 
feet of the required front yard are paved for motor vehicle use (inclusive of the 
main residence driveway and parking areas) and a minimum setback of 
eighteen (18) inches from the side property lines is maintained. 

 
The required off-street parking can be provided in either a covered or 
uncovered space, but all covered parking shall comply with the setback 
requirements of the main dwelling, if the parking is attached, or the accessory 
building regulations, if the parking is detached. 

 
(11)    Parking Exceptions. The off-street parking requirement of subsection (10) of 
this section, Parking, does not apply to the following secondary dwelling units: 
 

(A)    Secondary dwelling units located within one-half (1/2) mile of public 
transit as determined by the community development director. 

 
(B)    Secondary dwelling units located within an architecturally and 
historically significant historic district. 

 
(C)    Existing secondary dwelling units that were permitted without additional 
parking. 

 
(D)    When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the 
occupant of the secondary dwelling unit. 

 
(E)    When a car share vehicle is located within one (1) block of the 
secondary dwelling unit as determined by the community development 
director. 

 
(12)    Consistency. All secondary dwelling units shall comply with all applicable 
development regulations for the single-family zoning district in which the lot is 
located and building code requirements set forth in Title 12, Buildings and 
Construction, unless otherwise specifically provided for in this section. 
 
(13)    Aesthetics. The secondary dwelling unit shall have colors, materials, textures 
and architecture similar to the main dwelling. 
 
(14)    Tenancy. Either the main dwelling or the secondary dwelling unit shall be 
occupied by the property owner when both units are occupied as dwelling units. If a 
property owner does not occupy one (1) of the dwelling units, the property owner 
may apply for a nontenancy status for a term of one (1) year through a registration 
process established by the community development director. To be eligible for the 
registration process, a property owner must have lived at the subject property for a 
minimum of two (2) years of the previous five (5) years from the date of application. 
The property owner may renew the registration annually, not to exceed four (4) 

Page G1.18



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 14 of 17 

years in total, subject to the review and approval of the community development 
director, pursuant to the following criteria and process established by the community 
development director: 
 

(A)    The application for the registration and renewal(s) shall be accompanied 
by a fee, set by the city council. 

 
(B)    The application for registration and renewal shall state the reason for 
the request and provide supporting documentation. The registration shall be 
approved for any of the following reasons: (i) temporary job relocation, with 
the intent to return, (ii) relocation for school (e.g., mid-year career change), 
and (iii) physically unable to live in the house. 

 
(C)    The application shall provide a property management plan that includes 
the name and contact information to address issues or concerns about the 
use of the property should they arise. The plan should also include 
information about parking, including (i) a site plan with the parking layout for 
the property, (ii) how parking will be assigned between tenants, and (iii) an 
action plan that demonstrates how parking issues will be resolved effectively 
and efficiently between tenants if tandem parking is provided. 

 
(D)    A use permit is required for nontenancy status longer than four (4) years 
or for waiver of the requirement that the owner reside in the unit for not less 
than two (2) of the previous five (5) years prior to the date of application or for 
a reason other than those stated in subsection (14)(B) of this section. 

. 
16.79.045 Conversion of accessory buildings. 
(a)    An accessory building may be eligible to convert into a secondary dwelling unit, 
subject to meeting criteria as outlined in subsection (b) of this section and approval 
through the process outlined in Section 16.79.060. No additional off-street parking 
shall be required to convert an accessory building into a secondary dwelling unit. 

(b)    Eligibility. The following criteria must be met in order to be eligible for the 
conversion of an accessory building: 

(1)    The accessory building must have received building permits and 
commenced construction prior to January 1, 2017. Other supporting 
documentation to show the building was legally built may be substituted for a 
building permit subject to review by the community development director. 

(2)    The accessory building must be upgraded to meet the building code 
requirements based on the change of occupancy at the time of the conversion. 

(3)    The accessory building must meet all of the development regulations of 
Section 16.79.040, with the exception of Sections 16.79.040(5), Minimum 
Yards, (8), Height, and (9), Daylight Plane. 

Page G1.19



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 15 of 17 

(c)    All or any portion of an accessory building that meets the eligibility criteria as 
provided in this section may be demolished and reconstructed to meet the building 
code requirements based on the change of occupancy at the time of conversion. 
The secondary dwelling unit that replaces the accessory building may retain the 
setbacks and the footprint of the legally constructed accessory building. The existing 
setbacks and footprint of the accessory building must be evidenced by valid building 
permits or other supporting documentation subject to review by the community 
development director. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to authorize the 
expansion of the footprint or reduction of the setbacks beyond that evidenced by a 
valid building permit or other supporting documentation subject to review by the 
community development director or to allow the continuation of any other 
nonconformity. 

16.79.050 Mitigation monitoring. 
All second unit development shall comply, at a minimum, with the mitigation 

monitoring and report program (MMRP) established through Resolution No. 6149 
associated with the housing element update, general plan consistency update, and 
zoning ordinance amendments environmental assessment prepared for the housing 
element adopted on May 21, 2013. 
 

16.79.060 Application review and approval process. 
Each development of a secondary dwelling unit requires review for compliance with 

this chapter as part of the building permit review process for the creation of a secondary 
dwelling unit. 

(1)    Application. Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit 
application for the secondary dwelling unit, the secondary dwelling unit checklist, 
which demonstrates compliance with all of the secondary dwelling unit 
development regulations, shall be submitted. The application shall include plans 
showing the details of the proposed secondary dwelling unit per submittal 
guidelines established by the community development director. 

(2)    Compliance Determination. The community development director or his or 
her designee shall make a determination of compliance prior to issuance of the 
building permit for the secondary dwelling unit. The determination of the 
community development director is final and not subject to appeal. 

(3)    All applications for secondary dwelling units that meet and comply with the 
requirements under this chapter shall be approved without discretionary review 
or a hearing within one hundred twenty (120) days after receipt of a substantially 
complete application. The application shall be denied if the proposed secondary 
dwelling unit does not comply with all applicable requirements of this chapter or it 
may be conditionally approved subject to conditions that will bring the proposed 
secondary dwelling unit into compliance with this chapter. 

Page G1.20



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 16 of 17 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT OF CODE. Section 16.04.295 [Dwelling unit, secondary] of 
Chapter 16.04 [Definitions] of Title 16 [Zoning] is hereby amended as follows: 
 

16.04.295 Dwelling unit, secondaryaccessory. 
 A "secondary dwelling unit" (which is referred to as an “accessory dwelling unit” in 
State law) means a dwelling unit on a residential lot which provides complete 
independent living facilities for one or more persons, and shall include permanent 
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation independent of the main 
dwelling existing on the residential lot. For purposes of a secondary dwelling unit, 
permanent provisions for eating and cooking include the following: (1) permanent range, 
(2) counters, (3) refrigerator, and (4) sink. There are two (2) types of secondary dwelling 
units: (1) units attached to the existing dwelling, including units located within the living 
area of an existing dwelling unit (“Attached Secondary Dwelling Units”); and (2) units 
detached from the existing dwelling unit and located on the same lot as the existing 
dwelling unit (“Detached Secondary Dwelling Units”). 
An “accessory dwelling unit” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16.79.020(1). 

 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY.  If any section of this ordinance, or part hereof, is held by 
a court of competent jurisdiction in a final judicial action to be void, voidable or 
unenforceable, such section, or part hereof, shall be deemed severable from the 
remaining sections of this ordinance and shall in no way affect the validity of the 
remaining sections hereof. 
 
SECTION 5. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT DETERMINATION.  
This urgency ordinance implements new State law requirements related to accessory 
dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units as established in Government Code 
Section 65852.2. The ordinance is therefore statutorily exempt from review under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code 
Section 21080.17, which states that CEQA does not apply to a city’s adoption of an 
ordinance to implement the provisions of Government Code Section 65852.2. The City 
Council hereby finds that this ordinance is not subject to the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines sections 15061(b)(3), 15301, 15302 
and 15305 because it constitutes minor adjustments to the City’s zoning ordinance to 
implement State law requirements related to accessory dwelling units and junior 
accessory dwelling units which will likely result in additional dwelling units dispersed 
throughout the City over the course of a number of years. As such, it can be seen with 
certainty that the proposed action will not have the potential for causing a significant 
effect on the environment.  
 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This urgency ordinance shall take effect immediately.   
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED as an adopted ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a 
regular meeting of said City Council on the twenty-fifth day of February, 2020, by the 
following vote: 
 
// 

Page G1.21



Ordinance No. 1066 
Page 17 of 17 

 
AYES:   
  
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
  
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Cecilia Taylor, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page G1.22



City of Menlo Park – ADUs/JADUs in Single-Family Residential Districts 
Overall Regulations 

Minimum Lot Size None 
Maximum Number of 
ADUs 

Two (2): 
• One (1) Detached ADU  
• One (1) Interior/Attached ADU or Junior ADU (JADU) 

Sale/Subdivision of 
Individual Units 

Not permitted, except for units subject to AB 587 (16.79.100(3)) 

Aesthetic Similarity with 
Main Dwelling 

Not required 
 

Exterior Access Must provide exterior access separate from the primary dwelling for all ADU/JADUs 
Sanitation Facilities Must be independent for ADU, JADU can be shared with primary dwelling 
Cooking Facilities Must be independent of the primary dwelling 
Owner-Occupancy 
Requirement 

None for ADUs permitted after 1/1/2020; owner occupancy for ADUs receiving a building permit 
before January 1, 2020; for JADU owner required to reside in either the primary dwelling unit or 
JADU 

Rental Term 30 days, minimum for ADUs permitted after 1/1/2020; no rental term for ADUs issued a building 
permit prior to January 1, 2020 and JADUs 

 
 
 
  

ATTACHMENT B

Page G1.23



 
 

City of Menlo Park – ADUs/JADUs in Single-Family Residential Districts 
Development 
Regulation1 

Detached ADUs Attached/Interior ADUs JADU 

Maximum Unit Size Up to 800 
sf 

800 sf 
to 850 
sf 

850 sf 
to 1,000 
sf 

More than 
1,000 sf 

50 percent of existing primary dwelling (if 
addition) 

500 sf – must be within existing 
or proposed primary unit 

Number of 
Bedrooms 

1 max 1 max 2 max n/a Up to 800 
sf 

800 sf to 
850 sf 

850 sf to 
1,000 sf 

More than 
1,000 sf 

n/a 

1 max 1 max 2 max n/a 
Minimum Setback: 
Front 

Same as main building 

Minimum Setback: 
Side 

4 ft Same as primary dwelling  Interior ADU conversions: sufficient for 
compliance with Fire and Life Safety 

n/a 

Attached ADUs: 4 ft 
Minimum Setback: 
Rear 

4 ft 10 ft Interior ADU conversions: sufficient for 
compliance with Fire and Life Safety 

n/a 

Attached ADUs: 4 ft 
Maximum Height 16 ft 17 ft Same as the primary dwelling n/a 
Daylight Plane n/a  At 3 ft setback, measure up 

9.5 ft, then slope inwards at 45 
degrees 

Same as the primary dwelling n/a 

Permitted to exceed 
overall parcel FAL 
and Building 
Coverage limit 

Yes, if 
built with, 
or after, 
primary 
unit and 
other 
structures 

No Yes, if built 
with, or 
after, 
primary unit 
and other 
structures 

No n/a 

Parking One off-street parking space required; OK in tandem/setback configuration; No replacement 
parking is required for garage conversions 
No off-street parking space required if any of the following are met: 
• JADU 
• Located within a 0.5-mile walking distance of public transit.  
• Located within an architecturally and historically significant historic district 
• When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of the ADU 
• When there is a car share vehicle located within one block of the ADU 

None 

 
1.An applicant may seek a use permit to modify any development regulations of this chapter, except subdivision and number of units. 

Page G1.24



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-045-CC 
 
Public Hearing:  Adopt Resolution Nos. 6544, 6545, and 6546 

establishing utility underground districts for Alma 
Street; Downtown Parking Plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo 
Avenue; and Middlefield Road   

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution Nos. 6544, 6545, and 6546 establishing utilities 
underground districts at: 
1. Alma Street across from Burgess Park (Attachment A) 
2. Downtown Parking Plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo Avenue (Attachment B) 
3. Middlefield Road from Ravenswood Avenue to southern city limits (Attachment C) 

 
Policy Issues 
Undergrounding of overhead utilities is consistent with the City’s general plan and El Camino 
Real/downtown specific plan. General plan policy LU-2.6 underground utilities require all electric and 
communications lines serving new development to be placed underground and broadly addresses several 
other goals for improving safety and aesthetics along the City’s major roadway corridors. Specific plan 
guideline E.3.7.07, which applies to properties in the specific plan area, notes that all utilities in conjunction 
with new residential and commercial development should be placed underground. 
 
According to the City’s municipal code section 13.12.020, the City Council must hold a public hearing and 
adopt a resolution to establish a utility undergrounding district.  

 
Background 
At a study session September 24, 2019, staff provided the City Council an overview of the Rule 20A Utilities 
Undergrounding program, including benefits of undergrounding, and information on past projects within the 
City (Attachment D.) 
 
Staff presented information on the current level of Rule 20A funding available for undergrounding projects 
and recommended that the City Council direct staff to move forward with adopting the resolution to 
underground the Parking Plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo Avenue, which is a previously identified project in the 
City’s capital improvement program. In addition, staff provided a list of other corridors to be considered for 
future undergrounding, as well as a priority criteria by which those additional projects will be ranked. The 
City Council provided direction for staff to return with a revised, completed priority ranking list. 
 
Staff also informed the City Council of a recent California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) resolution 
requiring that PG&E reallocate Rule 20A work credits to the community of Live Oak from the allocations of 
those communities that were deemed “inactive.” Menlo Park, among 92 other jurisdictions, was identified as 
inactive, since it did not have a recent Rule 20A project completed, nor had an established undergrounding 

AGENDA ITEM G-2

Page G2.1



Staff Report #: 20-045-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

district for a new project. PG&E has informed staff that communities have until March 8 to establish an 
undergrounding district to protect their accrued allocations. Approximately $29,000 in allocations would be 
granted to the City of Live Oak if the City does not establish an undergrounding district before March 8. 
 
On February 11, staff provided an informational update to the City Council summarizing progress made to 
date on this item and preliminary rankings for the corridors previously presented to the City Council. A copy 
of the staff report could be found in Attachment G.  

 
Analysis 
Staff has prepared a citywide map showing project corridors that are both qualified and unqualified for Rule 
20A funding utilization as an aid in providing a comprehensive view of the City for utility undergrounding 
purposes (Attachment E.) As shown, local streets are not eligible for Rule 20A funding undergrounding due 
to the low volume characteristics of the streets. Several corridors are shown as multijurisdictional (Haven 
Avenue, Ivy Drive, sections of Marsh Road & Bay Road, Encinal Avenue and Valparaiso Avenue) where 
other agencies (Town of Atherton, San Mateo County, City of Redwood City, and the San Francisco Public 
Utilities Commission) have oversight of parts of the street infrastructure which may make these projects 
more difficult or infeasible to deliver in a reasonable timeframe.  
 
Per the direction of City Council given at the September 24 study session, staff has further refined and 
developed a list of prioritization criteria to identify appropriate future undergrounding project locations, 
including those suggested by the City Council. These criteria include: 
• High vehicle and pedestrian traffic 
• Number of panel conversions (lower=better) 
• Accessibility considerations (e.g., where utility poles interfere with accessibility) 
• Visual impact 
• Ability to combine with other projects 
• Enhancement for emergency/fire suppression 
• Electric service upgrade for commercial properties 
• Opportunities for electric vehicle (EV) charging stations 
• Constructability 
• Presence of high voltage lines 
 
Staff evaluated the criteria listed above for each of the qualified corridors and ranked them (Attachment F.) 
The top-ranking corridors are listed below in Table 1.  
 
In December 2019, staff met with representatives from various utility companies, including PG&E, AT&T 
and Comcast to review the potential proposed projects and received support for the top priority ranked 
projects.  
 
Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution to establish one or more undergrounding district(s.) 
The suggested corridors to be considered for establishing underground district are summarized in Table 1, 
and enabling resolutions and district maps for each district are included as Attachments A, B and C. The 
projects are presented in alphabetical order, and the City Council may elect to choose to establish a district 
for any or all of the projects listed below. The rationale for choosing more than one district is further 
explained following Table 1.  
 

Page G2.2



Staff Report #: 20-045-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Table 1: Corridors prioritized and rationale 

Alma Street across from Burgess Park (800 feet,) 
Attachment A 

• Would accommodate and could be delivered as 
part of the Middle Avenue pedestrian and 
bicycle rail crossing project.  

• Properties along this corridor also have 
previously converted their overhead services to 
underground, so impacts to private property 
owners would be minimal for this potential 
district.  

Downtown Parking Plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo Avenue 
(2,850 feet,) Attachment B 

• This project was previously identified by the City 
Council and is included in the current fiscal year 
2019-20 capital improvement program (CIP.) 

• The downtown area serves a high volume of 
vehicle and pedestrian traffic and could be 
combined with reconstructing parking plazas 7 
and 8.  

• Removal of utility poles would improve 
pedestrian accessibility on Menlo Avenue.  

Middlefield Road from Ravenswood Avenue to southern 
city limits (4,400 feet,) Attachment C 

• This corridor is one of the busiest in the city with 
a high traffic volume.  

• All properties along this corridor have previously 
converted their overhead services to 
underground, so impacts to private property 
owners would be minimal for this potential 
district. 

• A short section of high voltage overhead lines 
and utility poles would remain from Ravenswood 
Avenue to Ringwood Avenue (see map provided 
in Attachment B.) 

• Street pavement reconstruction on Middlefield 
Road is included in the five-year CIP  

 
Establishing an underground district does not obligate the City to move forward immediately with those 
specific projects. It also does not restrict the City from changing or reprioritizing other projects. However, 
establishing a new undergrounding district will protect the city’s allocations from being diverted to other 
jurisdictions.  
 
Additionally, City Council’s selection of potential districts would provide clarity on next steps for several 
capital improvement projects: 
• If Alma Street is selected, staff would incorporate the undergrounding work with the Middle Avenue 

bicycle and pedestrian rail crossing project currently in the design phase.  
• If the City Council selects downtown parking plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo Avenue as a potential district, 

staff would incorporate that work into the reconstruction of plazas 7 and 8. If City Council chooses not to 
proceed with undergrounding in parking plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo Avenue, staff would then proceed 
with plaza reconstruction without undergrounding.  

• If Middlefield Road is selected, staff would consider undergrounding work in parallel with street 
resurfacing work in the five-year CIP.  

 
Following the establishment of the underground district(s,) staff would begin design of the undergrounding 
and the associated infrastructure project. City Council may also choose to provide staff priority to proceed 

Page G2.3



Staff Report #: 20-045-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

with design of one or more of these projects.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
Establishing utility underground districts has no impact on City resources, but would preserve $29,000 in 
Rule 20A credits. The Downtown parking utility underground project was included in the CIP in fiscal year 
2014-15 with a budget of $200,000 for this project for preliminary investigations and outreach. Additionally, 
the fiscal year 2019-20 CIP includes $200,000 each for preliminary design for reconstruction of parking 
plazas 7 and 8 projects. No additional staff or financial resources are requested at this time. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. Additionally, undergrounding overhead utilities are categorically exempt from environmental 
review pursuant to the CEQA. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Staff published a notice of this public hearing in the local newspaper February 
13, and would run again February 16. Staff has also sent letters to specific property owners impacted by the 
potential establishment of the districts as noted in Table 1 above. Staff will notify potentially impacted 
property owners of any established district again within 10 days after City Council action, per Chapter 13.12 
of Menlo Park Municipal Code.  

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution No. 6544 for Alma Street 
B. Resolution No. 6545 for Downtown Parking Plazas 7 and 8 and Menlo Avenue 
C. Resolution No. 6546 for Middlefield Road 
D. Hyperlink – September 24, 2019 City Council report: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/22929/SS1--

-20190924-Undergrounding-Overhead-Utilities-CC 
E. Undergrounding corridor ranking list 
F. Citywide undergrounding map 
G. Hyperlink – February 11 City Council staff report: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24182/K2-

20200211-Overhead-Utilities 
 
Report prepared by: 
Morad Fakhrai, Senior Project Manager  
 
Report reviewed by: 
Chris Lamm, Assistant Public Works Director 
 

Page G2.4

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/22929/SS1---20190924-Undergrounding-Overhead-Utilities-CC
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/22929/SS1---20190924-Undergrounding-Overhead-Utilities-CC


RESOLUTION NO. 6544  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE MENLO PARK CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING 
UNDERGROUND UTILITY DISTRICT 11 LOCATED ALONG ALMA STREET 
BETWEEN BURGESS SKATE PARK AND BURGESS DRIVE  

 
WHEREAS, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) has authorized electric and 
telecommunication utilities to convert overhead utility lines and facilities to underground 
pursuant to Electric Rule 20 and Telecommunication Rule 32, and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to certain criteria, CPUC rules allow participating cities and counties to 
establish legislation authorizing the creation of underground utility districts within which existing 
overhead electric distribution and telecommunication distribution and service facilities will be 
converted to underground, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has consulted with the affected public utilities and such 
utilities have agreed that the proposed underground conversion district, designated the 
Underground Utility District 11 and more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, meets the criteria established by the rules of the CPUC, 
to wit,   
 
1) That the street or road or right-of-way adjoins or passes through a civic area or public 

recreation area or an area or unusual scenic interest to the general public, and 
 
WHEREAS a public hearing was called for on February 25, 2020, to ascertain whether the 
public necessity, health, safety or welfare requires the removal of poles, overhead wires and 
associated overhead structures, and the underground installation of wires and facilities for 
supplying electric, communication, or similar or associated service, within that certain area of 
the City described as follows: Alma Street between Burgess Skate Park and Burgess Drive; and 
 
WHEREAS, each year the City of Menlo Park is notified by PG&E regarding the allocation of 
work credits for conversion of overhead electric distribution lines and facilities to underground, 
known as Rule 20A allocations, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has consulted with PG&E and determined that the City 
has accumulated Rule 20A work credits or PG&E has agreed that the City may borrow against 
future credits sufficient to complete the proposed overhead to underground conversion project, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park and the affected utilities have agreed that each utility shall 
complete the engineering of their respective portion of the Alma Street Overhead to 
Underground Utility Conversion Project, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council and the affected utilities have agreed that the City of 
Menlo Park shall be designated as the “design and trench lead” to manage the design, 
trenching, installation of substructures, and pavement restoration and such other work; and 
 

ATTACHMENT A

Page G2.5



Resolution no. 6544 
Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS to the extent required, the City of Menlo Park has agreed to identify property 
owners/persons responsible for the properties identified by PG&E as requiring easements, and 
to make initial contact with the property owners/responsible persons, mail PG&E easement 
documents, and coordinate meetings for the purpose of assisting PG&E with acquisition of 
necessary easements, and 
 
WHEREAS, each property served from such electric overhead facilities shall have installed in 
accordance with PG&E’s rules for underground service, all electrical facility changes on the 
premises necessary to receive service from the underground facilities of PG&E as soon as it is 
available. 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has now received the report from the Director of Public 
Works recommending that the area identified in Exhibit “A” should be designated as an 
underground utility district within which all existing overhead poles, overhead wires and 
overhead equipment associated with the distribution of electric power, telecommunication 
services and cable television should be removed and replaced with underground wires and 
facilities; and   
 
WHEREAS, upon the recommendation of the Director of Public Works, the  
Menlo Park City Council has determined that the proposed Underground Utility District 11 is 
categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park will authorize PG&E to discontinue its overhead electric 
service upon completion of the underground distribution system, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park will seek to notify all affected City property owners within the 
proposed Underground Utility District 11 and inviting same to attend a public hearing to discuss 
formation of the proposed district, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council held a public hearing at which time the City Council did 
receive and consider the recommendation of the City Engineer and did hear any and all 
objections or protests that were raised by the owners of property within the above described 
district pertaining to designating this area an underground utility district; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Menlo Park City Council that:   
 
The public interest requires the removal of all existing utility poles [excepting those poles 
supporting streetlights or traffic signals], overhead wires and associated overhead structures 
and installation of underground wires and facilities for supplying electric power, communication, 
or similar associated services within the areas as shown in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto, with 
such area being designated as the Underground Utility District 11, and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the utility companies, cable television services and other affected 
services shall commence work on installation of underground facility installation in the 
Underground Utility District 11 and that as each phase of the project is complete and ready for 
conversion from overhead to underground utility facilities, all fronting property owners shall be 

Page G2.6



Resolution no. 6544 
Page 3 of 3 

notified by first class letter, postage pre-paid, of the schedule for conversion of all utility service 
lines, and   
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the electric utility which undertakes underground installation of its 
facilities shall use the underground conversion allocation computed pursuant to decisions of the 
Public Utilities Commission of the State of California for the purpose of providing to each 
property in said Underground Utility District which requires it, a maximum of one hundred feet of 
individual electric service trenching and conductor, as well as backfill, paving and conduit, if 
required.  Each other serving utility will provide service trenching and conductor in accordance 
with its tariffs on file with the California Public Utilities Commission or as required by its 
Franchise Agreement with the City of Menlo Park. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that once all services have been converted from overhead to 
underground, the utility companies, cable television services and other affected services shall 
remove all poles (except as specified above) and associated overhead facilities in the 
Underground Utility District 11, by a date to be determined and agreeable to all parties.   
 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twenty-fifth day of February, 2020, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:  
  
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twenty-fifth day of February, 2020. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page G2.7



R
A
V
E
N

S
W

O
O

D
 
A
V
E

ALMA ST

L
A
U

R
E
L
 S

T

B
U

R
G

E
S
S
 
D

R

W

A
V
E
R
L
E
Y
 
S
T

S
H

E
R
W

O
O

D
 
W

A
Y

ALMA ST

L

I
N

F

I
E

L

D

 

D

R

L
A
U

R
E
L
 S

T

L
A
U

R
E
L
 S

T

R
A
V
E
N

S
W

O
O

D
 
A
V
E

1401 Willow Pass Rd. Ste. 500, Concord CA. 94520

WeAreHarris.com    (925) 827-4900

Page G2.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1004

AutoCAD SHX Text
1018

AutoCAD SHX Text
1016

AutoCAD SHX Text
1014

AutoCAD SHX Text
1012

AutoCAD SHX Text
1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
801

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
501

AutoCAD SHX Text
555

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
482

AutoCAD SHX Text
460-

AutoCAD SHX Text
648

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
888

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
440

AutoCAD SHX Text
430

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
461

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
445

AutoCAD SHX Text
431

AutoCAD SHX Text
425

AutoCAD SHX Text
495

AutoCAD SHX Text
496

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
530

AutoCAD SHX Text
540

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
570

AutoCAD SHX Text
580

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ALMA ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Harris & Associates

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY UNDERGROUND DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF THE ENGINEER AND SHALL NOT  BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK  EXCEPT BY WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH THE ENGINEER. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS  SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND FIELD DIMENSIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY  SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE  OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO THE  START OF ANY WORK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H:\Menlo Park\131-0009 On-Call Renewed 2019\Alma St\Boundary Map_Alma St_1.dwg Save Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM      Boundary Map_Alma St_1.dwg Save Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM       Save Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM      2/5/2020 5:43 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM        Plot Date: 2/5/2020 5:43 PM      2/5/2020 5:43 PM      Zach.Carroll

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL IN DISTRICT



RESOLUTION NO. 6545 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE MENLO PARK CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING 
UNDERGROUND UTILITY DISTRICT 12 LOCATED ALONG MENLO AVENUE 
BETWEEN EL CAMINO REAL AND UNIVERSITY DRIVE, AND PARKING LOTS 
7 AND 8 

 
WHEREAS, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) has authorized electric and 
telecommunication utilities to convert overhead utility lines and facilities to underground 
pursuant to Electric Rule 20 and Telecommunication Rule 32, and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to certain criteria, CPUC rules allow participating cities and counties to 
establish legislation authorizing the creation of underground utility districts within which existing 
overhead electric distribution and telecommunication distribution and service facilities will be 
converted to underground, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has consulted with the affected public utilities and such 
utilities have agreed that the proposed underground conversion district, designated the 
Underground Utility District 12 and more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, meets the criteria established by the rules of the CPUC, to wit,   
 
1) That the streets or roads or rights-of-way are extensively used by the general public and carry 

a heavy volume of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, and  
 

2) That the streets or roads or rights-of-way adjoin or pass through a civic area or public 
recreation area or an area or unusual scenic interest to the general public, and 

 
WHEREAS a public hearing was called for February 25, 2020, to ascertain whether the public 
necessity, health, safety or welfare requires the removal of poles, overhead wires and 
associated overhead structures, and the underground installation of wires and facilities for 
supplying electric, communication, or similar or associated service, within that certain area of 
the City described as follows: Menlo Avenue between El Camino Real and University Drive and 
Parking Lots 7 and 8; and 
 
WHEREAS, each year the City of Menlo Park is notified by PG&E regarding the allocation of 
work credits for conversion of overhead electric distribution lines and facilities to underground, 
known as Rule 20A allocations, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has consulted with PG&E and determined that the City 
has accumulated Rule 20A work credits or PG&E has agreed that the City may borrow against 
future credits sufficient to complete the proposed overhead to underground conversion project, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park and the affected utilities have agreed that each utility shall 
complete the engineering of their respective portion of the Menlo Avenue/Parking Lots 7 and 8 
Overhead to Underground Utility Conversion Project, and  
 

ATTACHMENT B

Page G2.9



Resolution No. 6545 
Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council and the affected utilities have agreed that the City of 
Menlo Park shall be designated as the “design and trench lead” to manage the design, trenching, 
installation of substructures, and pavement restoration and such other work; and 
 
WHEREAS to the extent required, the City of Menlo Park has agreed to identify property 
owners/persons responsible for the properties identified by PG&E as requiring easements, and 
to make initial contact with the property owners/responsible persons, mail PG&E easement 
documents, and coordinate meetings for the purpose of assisting PG&E with acquisition of 
necessary easements, and 
 
WHEREAS, each property served from such electric overhead facilities shall have installed in 
accordance with PG&E’s rules for underground service, all electrical facility changes on the 
premises necessary to receive service from the underground facilities of PG&E as soon as it is 
available. 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has now received the report from the Director of Public 
Works recommending that the area identified in Exhibit “A” should be designated as an 
underground utility district within which all existing overhead poles, overhead wires and overhead 
equipment associated with the distribution of electric power, telecommunication services and 
cable television should be removed and replaced with underground wires and facilities; and   
 
WHEREAS, upon the recommendation of the Director of Public Works, the  
Menlo Park City Council has determined that the proposed Underground Utility District 12 is 
categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park will authorize PG&E to discontinue its overhead electric 
service upon completion of the underground distribution system, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park will seek to notify all affected City property owners within the 
proposed Underground Utility District 12 and inviting same to attend a public hearing to discuss 
formation of the proposed district, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council held a public hearing at which time the City Council did 
receive and consider the recommendation of the City Engineer and did hear any and all 
objections or protests that were raised by the owners of property within the above described 
district pertaining to designating this area an underground utility district; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Menlo Park City Council that:   
 
The public interest requires the removal of all existing utility poles [excepting those poles 
supporting streetlights or traffic signals], overhead wires and associated overhead structures and 
installation of underground wires and facilities for supplying electric power, communication, or 
similar associated services within the areas as shown in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto, with such 
area being designated as the Underground Utility District 12, and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the utility companies, cable television services and other affected 
services shall commence work on installation of underground facility installation in the 

Page G2.10



Resolution No. 6545 
Page 3 of 3 

Underground Utility District 12 and that as each phase of the project is complete and ready for 
conversion from overhead to underground utility facilities, all fronting property owners shall be 
notified by first class letter, postage pre-paid, of the schedule for conversion of all utility service 
lines, and   
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the electric utility which undertakes underground installation of its 
facilities shall use the underground conversion allocation computed pursuant to decisions of the 
Public Utilities Commission of the State of California for the purpose of providing to each property 
in said Underground Utility District which requires it, a maximum of one hundred feet of individual 
electric service trenching and conductor, as well as backfill, paving and conduit, if required.  Each 
other serving utility will provide service trenching and conductor in accordance with its tariffs on 
file with the California Public Utilities Commission or as required by its Franchise Agreement with 
the City of Menlo Park. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that once all services have been converted from overhead to 
underground, the utility companies, cable television services and other affected services shall 
remove all poles (except as specified above) and associated overhead facilities in the 
Underground Utility District 12, by a date to be determined and agreeable to all parties.   
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twenty-fifth day of February, 2020, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:   
  
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twenty-fifth day of February, 2020. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page G2.11



MENLO AVE

MENLO AVE

SANTA CRUZ AVE SANTA CRUZ AVE

D
O

Y
L
E
 
S
T

C
U

R
T
I
S
 
S
T

C
H

E
S
T
N

U
T
 
S
T

C
R
A
N

E
 
S
T

J
O

H
N

S
O

N
 
L
N

E
V
E
L
Y
N

 
S
T

U
N

I
V
E
R
S
I
T
Y
 
D

R

E
L
 
C
A
M

I
N

O
 
R
E
A
L

U
N

I
V
E
R
S
I
T
Y
 
D

R

C
R
A
N

E
 
S
T

C
H

E
S
T
N

U
T
 
S
T

M
A
L
O

N
E
Y
 
L
N

E
V
E
L
Y
N

 
S
T

C
R
A
N

E
 
S
T

MENLO AVE

LIVE OAK AVE

LIVE OAK AVE

E
L
 
C
A
M

I
N

O
 
R
E
A
L

CHESTNUT LN

1401 Willow Pass Rd. Ste. 500, Concord CA. 94520

WeAreHarris.com    (925) 827-4900

Page G2.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
840

AutoCAD SHX Text
830

AutoCAD SHX Text
816

AutoCAD SHX Text
808

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
770

AutoCAD SHX Text
766

AutoCAD SHX Text
760

AutoCAD SHX Text
750

AutoCAD SHX Text
720

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
648

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
634

AutoCAD SHX Text
899

AutoCAD SHX Text
889

AutoCAD SHX Text
883

AutoCAD SHX Text
873

AutoCAD SHX Text
871

AutoCAD SHX Text
887

AutoCAD SHX Text
885

AutoCAD SHX Text
877

AutoCAD SHX Text
875

AutoCAD SHX Text
869

AutoCAD SHX Text
867

AutoCAD SHX Text
865

AutoCAD SHX Text
1060

AutoCAD SHX Text
861

AutoCAD SHX Text
859

AutoCAD SHX Text
863

AutoCAD SHX Text
855

AutoCAD SHX Text
825

AutoCAD SHX Text
827

AutoCAD SHX Text
1059

AutoCAD SHX Text
811

AutoCAD SHX Text
809

AutoCAD SHX Text
807

AutoCAD SHX Text
1050

AutoCAD SHX Text
729

AutoCAD SHX Text
727

AutoCAD SHX Text
725

AutoCAD SHX Text
719

AutoCAD SHX Text
789

AutoCAD SHX Text
781

AutoCAD SHX Text
785

AutoCAD SHX Text
713

AutoCAD SHX Text
711

AutoCAD SHX Text
715

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
1075

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
693

AutoCAD SHX Text
683

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
639

AutoCAD SHX Text
641

AutoCAD SHX Text
635

AutoCAD SHX Text
1080

AutoCAD SHX Text
1050

AutoCAD SHX Text
1045-61

AutoCAD SHX Text
1075-79

AutoCAD SHX Text
1081-83

AutoCAD SHX Text
633

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
609

AutoCAD SHX Text
607

AutoCAD SHX Text
605

AutoCAD SHX Text
603

AutoCAD SHX Text
1039

AutoCAD SHX Text
1035

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1011-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1031

AutoCAD SHX Text
1001

AutoCAD SHX Text
1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
555

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
777

AutoCAD SHX Text
779

AutoCAD SHX Text
775

AutoCAD SHX Text
773

AutoCAD SHX Text
771

AutoCAD SHX Text
999

AutoCAD SHX Text
995

AutoCAD SHX Text
993

AutoCAD SHX Text
989

AutoCAD SHX Text
961

AutoCAD SHX Text
981

AutoCAD SHX Text
959

AutoCAD SHX Text
949

AutoCAD SHX Text
945

AutoCAD SHX Text
935

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
905

AutoCAD SHX Text
775

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
735

AutoCAD SHX Text
727

AutoCAD SHX Text
723

AutoCAD SHX Text
721

AutoCAD SHX Text
709

AutoCAD SHX Text
707

AutoCAD SHX Text
701

AutoCAD SHX Text
697

AutoCAD SHX Text
675

AutoCAD SHX Text
633

AutoCAD SHX Text
631

AutoCAD SHX Text
625

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
607

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
766

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
742

AutoCAD SHX Text
734

AutoCAD SHX Text
722

AutoCAD SHX Text
718

AutoCAD SHX Text
714

AutoCAD SHX Text
702

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
698

AutoCAD SHX Text
696

AutoCAD SHX Text
682

AutoCAD SHX Text
676

AutoCAD SHX Text
670

AutoCAD SHX Text
660

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
970

AutoCAD SHX Text
950

AutoCAD SHX Text
936

AutoCAD SHX Text
946

AutoCAD SHX Text
948

AutoCAD SHX Text
934

AutoCAD SHX Text
932

AutoCAD SHX Text
768

AutoCAD SHX Text
776

AutoCAD SHX Text
786

AutoCAD SHX Text
780

AutoCAD SHX Text
796

AutoCAD SHX Text
945

AutoCAD SHX Text
946

AutoCAD SHX Text
940

AutoCAD SHX Text
944

AutoCAD SHX Text
932

AutoCAD SHX Text
931

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
905

AutoCAD SHX Text
818

AutoCAD SHX Text
814

AutoCAD SHX Text
802

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
825

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
999

AutoCAD SHX Text
997

AutoCAD SHX Text
935

AutoCAD SHX Text
945

AutoCAD SHX Text
955

AutoCAD SHX Text
932

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
836

AutoCAD SHX Text
850

AutoCAD SHX Text
860

AutoCAD SHX Text
868

AutoCAD SHX Text
849

AutoCAD SHX Text
841

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
904

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
959

AutoCAD SHX Text
957

AutoCAD SHX Text
969

AutoCAD SHX Text
985

AutoCAD SHX Text
991

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
907

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
905

AutoCAD SHX Text
609

AutoCAD SHX Text
1001

AutoCAD SHX Text
1039

AutoCAD SHX Text
1047

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
950

AutoCAD SHX Text
930

AutoCAD SHX Text
932

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
888

AutoCAD SHX Text
880

AutoCAD SHX Text
870

AutoCAD SHX Text
850

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1110

AutoCAD SHX Text
1120

AutoCAD SHX Text
898

AutoCAD SHX Text
844

AutoCAD SHX Text
842

AutoCAD SHX Text
848

AutoCAD SHX Text
824

AutoCAD SHX Text
826

AutoCAD SHX Text
820

AutoCAD SHX Text
814

AutoCAD SHX Text
812

AutoCAD SHX Text
816

AutoCAD SHX Text
780

AutoCAD SHX Text
772

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
732

AutoCAD SHX Text
730

AutoCAD SHX Text
728

AutoCAD SHX Text
812

AutoCAD SHX Text
1110

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
716

AutoCAD SHX Text
714

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
706

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
654

AutoCAD SHX Text
656

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
648

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
626

AutoCAD SHX Text
628

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
604

AutoCAD SHX Text
602

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
1105

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PARKING LOT 7 AND 8, AND MENLO AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Harris & Associates

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY UNDERGROUND DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF THE ENGINEER AND SHALL NOT  BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK  EXCEPT BY WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH THE ENGINEER. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS  SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND FIELD DIMENSIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY  SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE  OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO THE  START OF ANY WORK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H:\Menlo Park\131-0009 On-Call Renewed 2019\Parking Lots 7&8, Menlo Ave\Boundary Map_Parking Lot 7 And 8 Menlo Ave.dwg Save Date: 2/5/2020 6:05 PM  Boundary Map_Parking Lot 7 And 8 Menlo Ave.dwg Save Date: 2/5/2020 6:05 PM   Save Date: 2/5/2020 6:05 PM  2/5/2020 6:05 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 6:05 PM      Zach.Carroll2/5/2020 6:05 PM      Zach.Carroll      Zach.CarrollZach.Carroll

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL IN DISTRICT



RESOLUTION NO. 6546  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE MENLO PARK CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING 
UNDERGROUND UTILITY DISTRICT 13 LOCATED ALONG MIDDLEFIELD 
ROAD BETWEEN RAVENSWOOD AVENUE AND THE CITY LIMIT 

 
WHEREAS, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) has authorized electric and 
telecommunication utilities to convert overhead utility lines and facilities to underground 
pursuant to Electric Rule 20 and Telecommunication Rule 32, and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to certain criteria, CPUC rules allow participating cities and counties to 
establish legislation authorizing the creation of underground utility districts within which existing 
overhead electric distribution and telecommunication distribution and service facilities will be 
converted to underground, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has consulted with the affected public utilities and such 
utilities have agreed that the proposed underground conversion district, designated the 
Underground Utility District 13 and more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, meets the criteria established by the rules of the CPUC, to wit,   
 
1) That the street or road or right-of-way is extensively used by the general public and carries a 

heavy volume of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, and  
 

2) That the street or road or right-of-way is considered an arterial street or major collector as 
defined in the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research General Plan Guidelines, and 
 

3) That the street or road or right-of-way adjoins or passes through a civic area or public 
recreation area or an area of unusual scenic interest to the general public 

 
WHEREAS a public hearing was called for February 25, 2020, to ascertain whether the public 
necessity, health, safety or welfare requires the removal of poles, overhead wires and 
associated overhead structures, and the underground installation of wires and facilities for 
supplying electric, communication, or similar or associated service, within that certain area of 
the City described as follows: Middlefield Road between Ravenswood Avenue and the City 
Limit, and 
 
WHEREAS, each year the City of Menlo Park is notified by PG&E regarding the allocation of 
work credits for conversion of overhead electric distribution lines and facilities to underground, 
known as Rule 20A allocations, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has consulted with PG&E and determined that the City 
has accumulated Rule 20A work credits or PG&E has agreed that the City may borrow against 
future credits sufficient to complete the proposed overhead to underground conversion project, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park and the affected utilities have agreed that each utility shall 
complete the engineering of their respective portion of the Middlefield Road Overhead to 
Underground Utility Conversion Project, and  

ATTACHMENT C

Page G2.13



Resolution No. 6546 
Page 2 of 3 

 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council and the affected utilities have agreed that the City of 
Menlo Park shall be designated as the “design and trench lead” to manage the design, trenching, 
installation of substructures, and pavement restoration and such other work; and 
 
WHEREAS to the extent required, the City of Menlo Park has agreed to identify property 
owners/persons responsible for the properties identified by PG&E as requiring easements, and 
to make initial contact with the property owners/responsible persons, mail PG&E easement 
documents, and coordinate meetings for the purpose of assisting PG&E with acquisition of 
necessary easements, and 
 
WHEREAS, each property served from such electric overhead facilities shall have installed in 
accordance with PG&E’s rules for underground service, all electrical facility changes on the 
premises necessary to receive service from the underground facilities of PG&E as soon as it is 
available. 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council has now received the report from the Director of Public 
Works recommending that the area identified in Exhibit “A” should be designated as an 
underground utility district within which all existing overhead poles, overhead wires and overhead 
equipment associated with the distribution of electric power, telecommunication services and 
cable television should be removed and replaced with underground wires and facilities; and   
 
WHEREAS, upon the recommendation of the Director of Public Works, the  
Menlo Park City Council has determined that the proposed Underground Utility District 13 is 
categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park will authorize PG&E to discontinue its overhead electric 
service upon completion of the underground distribution system, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park will seek to notify all affected City property owners within the 
proposed Underground Utility District 13 and inviting same to attend a public hearing to discuss 
formation of the proposed district, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council held a public hearing at which time the City Council did 
receive and consider the recommendation of the City Engineer and did hear any and all 
objections or protests that were raised by the owners of property within the above described 
district pertaining to designating this area an underground utility district; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Menlo Park City Council that:   
 
The public interest requires the removal of all existing utility poles [excepting those poles 
supporting streetlights or traffic signals], overhead wires and associated overhead structures and 
installation of underground wires and facilities for supplying electric power, communication, or 
similar associated services within the areas as shown in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto, with such 
area being designated as the Underground Utility District 13, and  
 

Page G2.14



Resolution No. 6546 
Page 3 of 3 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the utility companies, cable television services and other affected 
services shall commence work on installation of underground facility installation in the 
Underground Utility District 13 and that as each phase of the project is complete and ready for 
conversion from overhead to underground utility facilities, all fronting property owners shall be 
notified by first class letter, postage pre-paid, of the schedule for conversion of all utility service 
lines, and   
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that the electric utility which undertakes underground installation of its 
facilities shall use the underground conversion allocation computed pursuant to decisions of the 
Public Utilities Commission of the State of California for the purpose of providing to each property 
in said Underground Utility District which requires it, a maximum of one hundred feet of individual 
electric service trenching and conductor, as well as backfill, paving and conduit, if required.  Each 
other serving utility will provide service trenching and conductor in accordance with its tariffs on 
file with the California Public Utilities Commission or as required by its Franchise Agreement with 
the City of Menlo Park. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER that once all services have been converted from overhead to 
underground, the utility companies, cable television services and other affected services shall 
remove all poles (except as specified above) and associated overhead facilities in the 
Underground Utility District 13, by a date to be determined and agreeable to all parties.   
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twenty-fifth day of February, 2020, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:   
  
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twenty-fifth day of February, 2020. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page G2.15



MIDDLEFIELD RD

R
A
V
E
N

S
W

O
O

D
 
A
V
E

S

E

M

I
N

A

R

Y

 

D

R

S
E
M

I
N

A
R
Y
 
D

R

L
I
N

F
I
E
L
D

 
D

R

S
U

R
V
E
Y
 
L
N

S

A

N

T

A

 
M

O

N

I
C

A

 
A

V

E

MIDDLEFIELD RD MIDDLEFIELD RD

S

A

N

T

A

 
M

A

R

G

A

R

I
T

A

 
A

V

E

W

I
L
L
O

W

 
R

D

W

I
L

L

O

W

 
R

D

MIDDLEFIELD RD

1401 Willow Pass Rd. Ste. 500, Concord CA. 94520

WeAreHarris.com    (925) 827-4900

Page G2.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
333

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
555

AutoCAD SHX Text
545

AutoCAD SHX Text
535

AutoCAD SHX Text
525

AutoCAD SHX Text
215

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
235

AutoCAD SHX Text
245

AutoCAD SHX Text
265

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
295

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
305

AutoCAD SHX Text
255

AutoCAD SHX Text
165

AutoCAD SHX Text
345

AutoCAD SHX Text
333

AutoCAD SHX Text
321

AutoCAD SHX Text
322

AutoCAD SHX Text
320

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
135

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
807

AutoCAD SHX Text
809

AutoCAD SHX Text
811

AutoCAD SHX Text
813

AutoCAD SHX Text
815

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
240

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
290

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
178

AutoCAD SHX Text
182

AutoCAD SHX Text
177

AutoCAD SHX Text
173

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
301

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATHERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENLO PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALO ALTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENLO PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(COMM. CONVERSION  REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(COMM. CONVERSION  REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED MIDDLEFIELD RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Harris & Associates

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY UNDERGROUND DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF THE ENGINEER AND SHALL NOT  BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK  EXCEPT BY WRITTEN AGREEMENT WITH THE ENGINEER. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS  SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND FIELD DIMENSIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY  SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE  OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO THE  START OF ANY WORK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H:\Menlo Park\131-0009 On-Call Renewed 2019\Middlefield\Boundary Map_Middlefield.dwg Save Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM      Boundary Map_Middlefield.dwg Save Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM       Save Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM      2/5/2020 6:03 PM  Plot Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM        Plot Date: 2/5/2020 6:03 PM      2/5/2020 6:03 PM      Zach.Carroll

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL IN DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM.: COMMUNICATIONS



Undergrounding Corridor Ranking List

Project Points Scale PL 7&8 & 
Menlo Ave Alma Street Middlefield 

Road

PL 1&3 & 
Oak Grove 

Ave

Middle 
Avenue

Santa Cruz 
Avenue

Ravenswood 
Avenue

Hamilton 
Avenue

Newbridge 
Street

From El Camino Real Burgess Dr Ravenswood 
Ave El Camino Real El Camino 

Real University Dr Middlefield Rd Market Pl Willow Rd

To University Dr Skate Park City Limit University Dr Cotton St Elder Ave Noel Dr Chilco St Windermere Ave
Length (ft) 2,850             800             4,400             3,300            5,000          4,800          2,440              1,550          1,500                   

Estimated Cost 3,420,000$   960,000$    5,280,000$   3,960,000$   6,000,000$ 5,760,000$ 2,928,000$    1,860,000$ 1,800,000$          
Vehicle and pedestrian traffic 1 to 5 (1 = low volume/5 = high volume) 2 1 4 3 3 5 3 2 2
Visual impact 1 to 5 (1 = few / 5 = more destinations) 3 4 3 3 3 5 3 4 0
Number of panel conversions 1 to 5 (1 = few / 5 = more panels per foot) 3 5 5 2 2 2 4 0 3
Constructability 1 to 7 (1 = narrow / 7 = wide street width) 6 6 7 6 6 5 4 3 1
Ability to combine with other projects* 1 to 16 (number/ratings of projects combined) 16 9 6 10 9 3 7 0 6
High voltage lines 0 to -10 (0 = none / -10 = longer HV lines) 0 0 -1 0 0 0 -8 0 -8

TOTAL 30 25 24 24 23 20 13 9 4
RANK 1 2 3 3 5 6 7 8 9

Ability to combine with other projects includes:
Enhancement for emergency/fire suppression
Electric service upgrade for commercial properties
Opportunities for EV charging stations
Accessibility considerations
New Paving
TMP Improvements

ATTACHMENT E

Page G2.17



Overhead Utilities Undergrounding

Recommended/Completed
Previously Undergrounded

Qualified for Undergrounding

Qualified for Undergrounding (by others)

Not Recommended
Includes High Voltage Transmission Lines

Multi-Jurisdictional

Local Streets (Not Eligible for Rule 20A funds)

SAND HILL RD

EL CAMINO REAL O
A

K 
G

RO
VE

 A
VE

SA
N

TA
 C

RU
Z 

AV
E

M
EN

LO
 A

VE

RA
VE

N
SW

O
O

D
 A

VE MIDDLEFIELD RD W
IL

LO
W

 R
D

W
IL

LO
W

 R
D

O'BRIEN DR

U
N

IVERSITY A
VE

JEFFERSON DR

CHILCO ST

CONSTITUTION DR

HAVEN RD

M
A

RS
H

 R
D

U.S. HWY 101

BAYFRONT EXPWY

0 0.5 10.25
Mile

M
ID

D
LE

 A
VE

VA
LP

AR
AI

SO
 A

VE

EN
C

IN
A

L 
AV

E

LAUREL ST
ALMA ST

BAY RD

HAMILTON AVE

NEWBRIDGE ST

A
LP

IN
E 

RD

C
H

RY
SL

ER
 D

R

UNIVERSITY DR

IVY DR

ATTACHMENT F

Page G2.18



City Manager's Office 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-039-CC 
 
Regular Business:  Approve the interim service levels provided during 

the construction of the Belle Haven community 
center and library project, appropriate $1 million for 
interim services, and waive purchasing 
requirements and increase the city manager 
purchasing authority to $500,000 for interim 
services   

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
1. Approve interim service levels for the Belle Haven Youth Center, Onetta Harris Community Center, and 

Menlo Park Senior Center provided during construction of a new facility as outlined in Table 2; 
2. Appropriate $1 million to the Belle Haven community center and library project to provide interim 

services, at the City Council approved service levels, for up to 30 months; 
3. Waive purchasing requirements to secure facilities, goods, and services required to provide interim 

services promptly;  
4. Increase the city manager’s purchasing authority from $75,000 to $500,000 for any single agreement or 

purchase related to interim services during construction of the new Belle Haven community center and 
library; and 

5. Direct the city manager to report on the exercise of this authority through an informational item provided 
to the City Council at a regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
Policy Issues 
City Council is responsible for setting service levels. City Council Procedure # CC-19-001 sets the city 
manager’s purchasing authority, currently at $75,000 for fiscal year 2019–20, and requires bidding for 
goods and services above $37,500 and formal bids for public projects above $200,000 unless modified or 
temporarily waived.  

 
Background 
In October 2019, Facebook announced its intent to collaborate with the community and the City to build a 
new multigenerational community center and library on the site of the current Onetta Harris Community 
Center (OHCC,) Menlo Park Senior Center and Belle Haven Youth Center located at 100-110 Terminal 
Avenue. On December 10, 2019, staff provided an informational item staff report to provide an update to 
City Council while awaiting a written offer. In addition, the City Council appointed City Councilmembers 
Carlton and Taylor to an ad hoc subcommittee on this project. On December 16, 2019, Facebook submitted 
its offer for the City Council’s consideration.  
 
On December 30, 2019, a staff committee was formed from several city departments to investigate the 
transition from services provided at the current locations to services provided in interim locations should the 

AGENDA ITEM H-1

Page H1.1



Staff Report #: 20-039-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council accept the offer from Facebook. On January 28, the City Council approved a resolution of 
intent to collaborate with Facebook and accept the offer. On February 11, City Council conducted a study 
session to discuss current service levels and directed staff regarding changes to the preliminary 
recommendations.  

 
Analysis 
Following the study session, staff incorporated the City Council’s feedback and refined the criteria for 
potential sites to provide interim services. For comparison, staff attempted to create a benchmark for the 
appropriate space and necessary service requirements. This benchmark is for comparison purposes only 
and does not necessarily represent a recommended solution. 
 
Interim facility benchmarks 
Staff gathered quotes and related costs to develop an interim services estimated net cost (the cost above 
our normal operating budget) for providing service in portable buildings on unoccupied, City-owned land. 
Based on the recommended service levels and types of portable units available, the estimated costs are 
described below in Table 1. It is important to note that two options are presented, with a mobile kitchen 
estimate included as one method to continue provision of the senior meal program. 
 

Table 1: Interim services facility benchmark requirements 

Facility/service Description Cost estimate 

Large portable (60’ x 48’) Assembly area, multipurpose $155,000 

Medium portable (60’ x 12’) Classroom, multipurpose $42,000 

Small portable (44’ x 12’) Classroom, multipurpose $40,000 

Mobile kitchen Meal preparation facility $145,000 

Siting requirements Utility hook-ups, paving, site work, permits $430,000 

Low-end total estimate Minimal facilities, no kitchen $627,000 

High-end total estimate Expanded facilities, including kitchen $812,000 
 
Current service inventory 
The current service inventory (Attachment A) is a listing of all services provided at the project site and 
grouped by current facility.  
 
Priority tier for interim services 
While all of the current services are valued and important, not all services are as critical or practical to 
provide during the construction period. There is a strong commitment to continue providing services related 
to the health and safety of vulnerable populations (e.g., seniors, children.) Three priority tiers are identified 
that help distinguish between these categories. The rating factors are described in greater detail below: 
 
Tier 1 
A vulnerable population is the primary service user and the service provided is of critical importance to their 
health or safety 
  

Page H1.2



Staff Report #: 20-039-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Tier 2 
The program or service provided is not critical 

AND  
Alternative space for the program or service can be reasonably acquired 
 
Tier 3 
The program or service provided is not critical 

AND 
There are no reasonable alternatives for space which are not cost prohibitive 
 
Interim service levels 
In addition to prioritizing the services currently provided, a recommendation was developed for the degree 
of services to be provided in the interim, ranging from the current level at the high end to temporary 
discontinuation at the low end. All service level ratings include all factors necessary to provide the service, 
including appropriate building floor space and room configuration, transportation (if necessary) and staff 
workspaces. The ratings are described below: 
• Same level – The service is critical and cannot be provided at a lower level without severe disruption  
• Reduced level – A change in service level has been identified which meets most or all program goals 
• Outsource – There exists another provider or location for service in the interim 
• Suspend – Providing this service is not feasible during project construction but may resume afterward 
 
It is important to note that these recommended interim service levels would be considered the low end for 
providing service but would not prevent increasing service if a cost-effective solution were identified. 
 
Direction provided during the study session 
At the February 11, study session on interim services, discussion included youth drop-in gym sessions and 
maintaining the full range of senior services. Staff estimates that the gym at the OHCC currently serves 
approximately 10 youth-aged drop-ins per week. Staff does not recommend changing the interim service 
level for this category. Staff also investigated the impact of maintaining health and wellness programs and 
social events for senior center participants at the current level. 
 
Requirements for a dedicated space or without reducing hours to accommodate after-school users would 
likely increase the space needed by one portable or equivalent alternate option. This marginal cost is 
reflected in the option labeled small portable in Table 1. Additional site costs for additional portable units are 
minimal, but it may require a larger lot to accommodate additional units. Staff recommends a preference for 
a dedicated senior space, but allowing the flexibility to reduce service depending on options available.  
 
Recommended interim service summary 
The services currently offered, ordered alphabetically by current location, are summarized in Table 2 below.  
 
The specific recommendations are included in Attachment A. 
  

Page H1.3



Staff Report #: 20-039-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Table 2: Recommended interim service level 

Service Current location Tier Recommended 
interim service level 

Pool operations Belle Haven Pool 3 Suspended 

After school child care and summer camp Belle Haven 
Youth Center 1 Same level 

Sports field group rentals Kelly Field 2 Same level 

Second Harvest program OHCC 1 Same level 

Recreation classes, community special events OHCC 2 Reduced level 

Drop-in fitness/gym classes, room rentals OHCC 3 Suspended 

Senior meals, transportation, health and counseling programs Senior Center 1 Same level 

Senior recreation classes, special events, game room Senior Center 2 Reduced level 

Seniors' community garden Senior Center 2 Outsourced 

Senior community meeting rooms Senior Center 3 Suspended 
 
Requested authority and action 
If the recommended interim service levels are approved, staff requests authority for the city manager to 
negotiate on behalf of the City in order to find the best mix of interim locations to provide services during 
construction. Due to the extent of combinations possible, this could feasibly include a commercial rental with 
some tenant improvements, shared use agreements with local organizations, portable rentals, or some 
combination of the above. The requested authority of $1 million provides some latitude when determining 
whether lower priority current services could potentially be included at a relatively low marginal cost as well 
as providing flexibility when including other factors such as transportation. The requested action will include 
a report on any agreements pursued, or, if no satisfactory method of providing interim services can be 
determined, returning to City Council with updated estimates. Finally, the requested action includes a waiver 
of competitive bidding requirements in recognition of the requirement for timeliness for providing interim 
services. 
 
Subcommittee review 
The City Council ad hoc subcommittee was not available to review the recommended service levels and 
benchmark cost estimate prior to publication of the staff report. 
 
Next steps 
If approved, staff will begin negotiations with owners of potential interim sites with the intention of procuring 
the mix which prioritizes according to the following criteria: 
1. Attainment of minimum interim service level provision according to City Council direction 
2. Lower impact to affected service populations 
3. Greater collocation of services 
4. Lower overall cost 
5. Within the City boundaries 

 
If a suitable location or mix of locations can be identified within the $1 million authority, the city manager will 
provide an informational item report during a regularly scheduled City Council meeting detailing any 
agreements which were entered. If no suitable location or mix of locations can be identified within the $1 

Page H1.4



Staff Report #: 20-039-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

million authority, staff will return with an updated cost estimate and request for consideration by City 
Council. 

Impact on City Resources 
This action appropriates $1 million to the Belle Haven community center and library project in fiscal year 
2019-20 and uses available fund balance in the City’s library system improvements fund and general capital 
improvement fund. The project funding will be consolidated into one fund as part of the midyear budget 
report in March 2020. Requests for additional appropriations will be necessary once the formal agreement 
between the City and Facebook regarding the City’s financial obligation to the new facility is determined.  

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. In addition, the City sent electronic notices via Nextdoor, Facebook, the Weekly 
Digest and directly to project email and text update subscribers from the project page (Attachment B.)  

Attachments 
A. Current service inventory 
B. Hyperlink – project page: menlopark.org/bellehaven 

Report prepared by: 
Dan Jacobson, Finance and Budget Manager  
Darek Schweigart, Community Services Director 

Report reviewed by: 
Justin Murphy, Deputy City Manager 

Page H1.5

http://www.menlopark.org/bellehaven


Service inventory, priority tiers and interim service levels

Ref #Service Current location
Priority 
tier

Recommended 
interim level Notes

1 Senior nutrition program (senior meals) Senior Center 1 Same level
2 Senior recreation classes Senior Center 2 Reduced level Focus on movement/exercise
3 Senior special events Senior Center 2 Reduced level Focus on movement/exercise
4 Senior Center rentals Senior Center 3 Suspend
5 Senior Center community meeting rooms Senior Center 3 Reduced level
6 Senior transportation program Senior Center 1 Same level
7 Seniors brown bag program Senior Center 1 Same level
8 Seniors health screenings Senior Center 1 Same level
9 Seniors counseling programs Senior Center 1 Same level
10 Seniors community garden Senior Center 2 Outsource Coordinate with Belle Haven Community Garden
11 Seniors social opportunities (game room) Senior Center 2 Reduced level
12 Samaritan House Senior Center 3 Outsource
13 Senior Center program storage space Senior Center 1 Reduced level
14 OHCC - recreation classes OHCC 2 Reduced level
15 OHCC - rentals OHCC 3 Suspend
16 OHCC - Gym rentals OHCC 3 Suspend
17 OHCC - Drop-in Gym (b-ball / v-ball) OHCC 3 Suspend
18 OHCC - Drop-in Fitness Room OHCC 3 Suspend
19 OHCC - community special events OHCC 2 Reduced level
20 OHCC - community rooms OHCC 3 Suspend
21 OHCC - Second Harvest OHCC 1 Same level
22 After School Program Youth Center 1 Same level
23 Camp Menlo (Summer) Youth Center 1 Same level
24 Recreation swim* BH Pool 3 Suspend
25 Lap swim* BH Pool 3 Suspend
26 Youth swim school* BH Pool 3 Suspend
27 Youth water polo* BH Pool 3 Suspend
28 Swim camps* BH Pool 3 Suspend
29 Sports field user group rentals Kelly Field 2 Same level Use of field limiited during construction hours

* Operator will explore alternative delivery.

ATTACHMENT A

Page H1.6



City Manager's Office 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-035-CC 
 
Informational Item:  City Council agenda topics: March 2020 to May 2020  

 
Recommendation 
The purpose of this informational item is to provide the City Council and members of the public access to 
the anticipated agenda items that will be presented to the City Council. The mayor and city manager set the 
City Council agenda so there is no action required of the City Council as a result of this informational item.  

 
Policy Issues 
In accordance with the City Council procedures manual, the mayor and city manager set the agenda for City 
Council meetings.  

 
Analysis 
In an effort to provide greater access to the City Council’s future agenda items, staff has compiled a listing 
of anticipated agenda items, Attachment A, through May 12. The topics are arranged by department to help 
identify the work group most impacted by the agenda item.  
 
Specific dates are not provided in the attachment due to a number of factors that influence the City Council 
agenda preparation process. In their agenda management, the mayor and city manager strive to compile an 
agenda that is most responsive to the City Council’s adopted priorities and work plan while also balancing 
the business needs of the organization. Certain agenda items, such as appeals or State mandated 
reporting, must be scheduled by a certain date to ensure compliance. In addition, the meeting agendas are 
managed to allow the greatest opportunity for public input while also allowing the meeting to conclude 
around 11 p.m. Every effort is made to avoid scheduling two matters that may be contentious to allow the 
City Council sufficient time to fully discuss the matter before the City Council. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting.  

 
Attachments 
A. City Council agenda topics: March 2020 to May 2020 
 
Report prepared by: 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM I-1

Page I1.1



Through May 12, 2020

Tentative City Council Agenda

# Title Department Item type

1 Goal setting, second session

5 Investment portfolio review as of March 31, 2020, Receive and file ASD Consent

6 Quarterly financial review of general fund operations as of March 31, 2020, Receive and file ASD Consent

7 ERAF,  budgeting ASD Informational

8 2019-20 budget amendment, service level enhancements re-visit, resolution adoptions ASD Regular

9 Executive summary of city manager’s proposed budget for fiscal year 2020-21 ASD Regular

10 Salary schedule, update ASD Regular

11 Safe storage ordinance, second reading and adoption CA Consent

12 Safe storage ordinance, first reading CA Regular

13 Adoption of Building Inspection Mutual Aid, Agreement CDD Consent

14 Housing element annual, review CDD Consent

15 Short term rental regulation, recommendation CDD Presentation

16 Newsrack regulations ordinance, first reading CDD Regular

17 Samaritan House, report on tenant relocation funds CDD Regular

2 2020 priorities and work plan, Adoption CMO Regular

3 Solid Waste Ordinance, introduction and first reading CMO Regular

4 Community EV Infrastructure Policy and Program Analysis CMO Study Session

18 Consider applicants and make appointments to fill vacancies on the various City commissions and committees CMO Committee Report

19 Commission/committee attendance report, review CMO Consent

20 Follow-up Grand Jury Response to EV Purchasing CMO Consent

21 Minutes: 2/11 CMO Consent

22 Minutes: 2/25 CMO Consent

23 Minutes: 3/10 and 3/24 CMO Consent

24 Minutes: 4/21 CMO Consent

25 Reach code, City Council appointed body for restaurants CMO Consent

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CD-Community Development
CSD-Community Services

PD-Police
PW-Public Works

ATTACHMENT A

Page I1.2



Through May 12, 2020

Tentative City Council Agenda

# Title Department Item type

26 City Council agenda topics: April 21 2020 – June 9 2020 CMO Informational

27 City Council agenda topics: Mar 24 2020 – May 26 2020 CMO Informational

28 City Council agenda topics: May 12 2020 – June 23 2020 CMO Informational

29 City Council agenda topics: May 26 2020 – July 14 2020 CMO Informational

30 Climate Action Plan 2.0, Study session CMO Study Session

31 Foodware Ordinance (Zero Waste Plan), Study Session CMO Study Session

32 Regular meeting schedule ordinance, second reading and adoption CMO, CA Consent

33 Regular meeting schedule ordinance, first reading CMO, CA Regular

34 "My Community" Youth Poster Exhibition, presentation LIB Presentation

35 Mental Health Awareness Month, proclamation LIB Presentation

36 Automated license plate readers (ALPR), Annual report PD Informational

37 Tasers, Annual report PD Informational

38 2020 Urban Water Management Plan, Agreement PW Consent

39 Nealon Park Tennis Court Restoration, award construction contract PW Consent

40 Santa Cruz Ave. / Middle Ave., award construction contract PW Consent

41 Terminal Avenue, notice of intent to vacate PW Consent

42 Five-year water rates for Menlo Park Municipal Water, resolution adoption PW Public Hearing

43 Willows neighborhood turn restrictions, resolution adoption PW Regular

44 Water rate, study PW Study Session

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CD-Community Development
CSD-Community Services

PD-Police
PW-Public WorksPage I1.3



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page I1.4



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-046-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Transmittal of background information on the City’s 

2019-2024 capital improvement plan   
 
Recommendation 
This is an informational item and does not require City Council action.  

 
Policy Issues 
The City Council adopts the capital improvement plan (CIP) as part of the budget adoption process annually 
in June. The City Council’s annual goal-setting process provides clarity on the use of city resources as well 
as prioritization of services and projects for the upcoming 12 to 18 months. Goals and priorities identified in 
the City Council’s annual goal-setting process are incorporated into the CIP each year.  

 
Background 
The City Council’s goal-setting process kicked off with the January 14 study session on resource capacity. 
At their January 28 meeting, the City Council adopted a resolution of intent that prioritizes construction of a 
new community center and library in the Belle Haven neighborhood. At their January 30 special meeting, 
the City Council held a goal-setting workshop to hear ideas of priorities for 2020 from the public and share 
their individual ideas.  

 
Analysis 
On January 30, the City Council requested a future study session on the current CIP, which is tentatively 
scheduled for March 24. Staff anticipates to provide:  
• Summary of the process to develop the annual CIP 
• Description of the prioritization process used to deliver CIP projects 
• Status updates on all 73 funded projects  
• Summary of financials for the major funds supporting CIP projects: general fund capital, water capital, 

transportation impact fees, building construction street impact fee, and Measure T bond funds.  
 
In preparation for the upcoming study session, staff is transmitting a copy of the current 2019-24 CIP 
(Attachment A.) This document is part of the 2019-20 budget, found on pages 129 to 198 as linked in 
Attachment B.  

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM I-2

Page I2.1



Staff Report #: 20-046-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – 2019-24 CIP: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24331/2-Att-A-CIP-2019-2024 
B. Hyperlink – 2019-20 adopted budget. CIP can be found on pages 129 to 198: 

menlopark.org/ArchiveCenter/ViewFile/Item/9688   
 

 
Report prepared by: 
Nikki Nagaya, Interim Public Works Director  
 
 

Page I2.2

https://menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/24331/2-Att-A-CIP-2019-2024
https://menlopark.org/ArchiveCenter/ViewFile/Item/9688


City Manager's Office 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-047-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE)  

 
Recommendation 
As an informational item, there is no action required by the City Council. This information may be helpful as 
the City Council considers its 2020 priorities.  

 
Policy Issues 
The City Council’s annual goal-setting process informs the development of the city manager’s proposed 
budget. 

 
Background 
At the City Council’s January 30 goal-setting workshop, several community members identified the need to 
elevate the discussion on racial equity in city operations. As part of the February 11 informational item on 
the goal-setting process, staff provided a brief three-year plan to make progress toward racial equity. 

 
Analysis 
One organization that helps to advance racial equity is the Local and Regional Government Alliance on 
Race and Equity (GARE), a joint project between the Hass Institute for a Fair and Inclusive Society, the 
Center for Social Justice, and the Racial Equity Alliance. Members of the public commonly referenced 
GARE in their recommendations to the City Council for 2020 priorities.  
 
As the City Council considers a project to elevate the discussion on racial equity, the City Council may find 
the Attachments A, B, and C useful. If the City Council a racial equity effort, the effort requires more action 
and resources than merely joining GARE. The GARE membership application asks new members to 
commit to specific steps in the first six months of membership.  While GARE is not the only organization that 
may assist in this effort, Mayor Taylor and three members of the city’s executive team attended the GARE 
annual convening in Fall 2019.   

 
Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact on City resources.  

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

AGENDA ITEM I-3

Page I3.1



Staff Report #: 20-047-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – GARE homepage: https://www.racialequityalliance.org/ 
B. Hyperlink – GARE’s Advancing Racial Equity and Transforming Government – A Resource Guide to Put 

Ideas into Action https://racialequityalliance.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/02/GARE-
Resource_Guide.pdf 

C. Hyperlink – GARE’s racial equity toolkit – An Opportunity to Operationalize Equity 
https://www.racialequityalliance.org/resources/racial-equity-toolkit-opportunity-operationalize-equity/ 

 
 
Report prepared by: 
Nick Pegueros, Assistant City Manager 

Page I3.2

https://www.racialequityalliance.org/
https://racialequityalliance.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/02/GARE-Resource_Guide.pdf
https://racialequityalliance.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/02/GARE-Resource_Guide.pdf
https://www.racialequityalliance.org/resources/racial-equity-toolkit-opportunity-operationalize-equity/


City Attorney 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   2/25/2020 
Staff Report Number:  20-051-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Update on potential marketing of United States 

Geological Survey (USGS) property and update 
on process for amending zoning  

 
Recommendation 
This is an Informational Item and no City Council action is required. 

 
Policy Issues 
In the next housing element cycle, the State will likely require Menlo Park to add significantly more 
housing sites to its housing inventory. The City of Menlo Park has been discussing the overall need for 
more housing opportunities in the City, particularly closer to the downtown area where there is existing 
transit. The recent disclosure that the United States Geological Survey (USGS) property may be up for 
sale creates an opportunity for the city to rezone all or a portion of this site to residential. 

 
Background 
The USGS property located at 345 Middlefield consists of two separate parcels totaling 17.3 acres. The 
first parcel is 12.8 acres and the second parcel is 4.5 acres. The site contains several buildings which have 
historically been occupied by USGS (see Attachment A site plan.) The property currently has a land use 
designation of public/quasi public and has a zoning designation of public facility (PF.) (see Attachments B 
and C.) the federal government is exempt from the City’s zoning requirements.  
 
USGS has occupied the buildings since 1954. The property is owned by the General Services 
Administration (GSA,) the federal government agency that manages federal office buildings. The GSA is 
obligated under federal law to charge market-rate rent for its properties. According to news reports, the 
USGS was paying about $7.5 million per year under a 10-year lease which expired in late 2017. In 
anticipation of a significant rent increase, USGS began exploring alternative locations for its operations. In 
2017, USGS entered into a lease at Moffett Field to relocate to the NASA campus. For the past three 
years, USGS has slowly been vacating its Menlo Park campus and the relocation is near completion. 
 
The GSA recently announced that it intends to put the former USGS campus up for sale, perhaps as early 
as the next few months. The GSA must follow federal requirements for disposing of property. These 
regulations require the GSA to consult with other public agencies before disposing of the property. This 
process can be lengthy. 

 
Analysis 
The following uses are permitted in the public facility zone: 
1. All public facilities used and operated for government purposes by the city of Menlo Park, the county 

AGENDA ITEM I-4

Page I4.1



Staff Report #: 20-051-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

of San Mateo, the state of California, and the government of the United States; 
2. All public facilities, owned by a school district but not used for school use. 

 
The following uses are conditionally permitted: 
1. All uses of existing facilities and/or property by entities other than the above-mentioned governmental 

agencies and school districts, or said entities for nongovernmental purposes; 
2. All facilities of any public utility.  
 
There are no development regulations in the P-F zoning district, except the floor area ratio (FAR) shall not 
exceed 30 percent (30%.) For conditional uses, a 60 percent (60%) FAR may be allowed with use permit 
approval on sites with a lot area of two (2) acres or less. 
 
Under the existing PF regulations, it would be difficult to accommodate medium to high density housing. 
 
If the City Council desires to rezone the USGS property it must take the following steps: 
1. Initiate a rezoning request by adopting a Resolution of Intent; 
2. Public hearing and recommendation by Planning Commission 
3. Public hearing by City Council. 
 
Public noticing is required for zone changes and a robust community engagement process would be 
anticipated. Zoning is required to be consistent with the general plan. As the general plan designation is 
currently public/quasi public, a zone change will also require a general plan amendment. The general plan 
amendment and zone change will also require environmental review under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA.) The specific level of review will depend on the proposed zoning change. 
 
Attachment C shows the existing surrounding zoning districts.  
 
The City Council has previously discussed rezoning the property to residential. Before the property goes 
on the market, it could be helpful for the City Council to indicate whether it has an intention to rezone as 
this would help set market expectations and help ensure that the price is reflective of the anticipated 
zoning.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
Adding a general plan amendment, zone change and environmental review to the City Council’s work 
plan would have an impact on both planning and city attorney staff. If the property is rezoned to 
multifamily housing, future staff time associated with locating additional housing sites needed to satisfy 
the City’s regional housing needs allocation (RHNA) allocation may be minimized. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting.  

Page I4.2



Staff Report #: 20-051-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Attachments 
A. USGS site plan 
B. USGS general plan map 
C. USGS and surrounding properties zoning map 
 
Report prepared by: 
Cara Silver, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 

 

 

Page I4.3



ATTACHMENT A

Page I4.4



NORTH FAIR OAKS
(Unincorporated)

ATHERTON

REDWOOD
CITY

STANFORD
LANDS

UNIVERSITYAVE

ALPINE RD

MA
RSH

RD

UNIVERSITY DR

EL CAMINO REAL

SANDHILL RD

WI
LLO

W
RDMIDDLEFIELD RDLAUREL ST

MIDD
LE A

VE

WOODLAND AVE

VAL
PAR

AIS
O AV

E

ALAMEDA DE LAS PULGAS

OLIVE ST

RIN
GW

OO
D A

VE

COLEMAN AVE

BAYRD

SHARO N P ARK DR

HAVEN AVE

IVY DR

SAN
TA 

CRU
Z A

VE

MO
NTE ROSA DR

CHILCO ST

NEWBRIDGE ST

!

MEN
LO

 P
AR

K
CA

LT
RA

IN
 ST

AT
IO

N

Ath
ert

on
Ch

an
ne

l

PALO ALTO

EAST
PALO ALTO

San Francisquito Creek

0 0.5 1 Miles

Sphere of Influence

Planning Area

City Limits

Generalized Land Uses

Residential
Commercial
Specific Plan Area
Parks and Recreation
Public/Quasi-Public

Bayfront Area

Baylands
Life Sciences
Office
Mixed-Use Residential
Light Industrial
Commercial Business Park

FIGURE 5: GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS

ATTACHMENT B

Page I4.5



ATTACHMENT C

Page I4.6


	20200225 City Council special and regular agenda - AMENDED
	F1-20200128 City Council regular minutes Jan 28 and 30
	F2-20200225 CC PD trategic Plan Information
	F3-20200225 CC OES JPA Payment
	F4-20200225 CC Interim City Attorney Services agreement
	F5-20200225 CC TMA Status Update
	F6-20200225 CC  FY2020-22 CCAG TA Shuttle Call for Projects
	F7-20200225 CC Budget principles transmittal report
	G1-20200225 CC Urgency ADU Ordinance
	G2-20200225 CC Overhead underground utilities
	2-Att A - Resolution 6544 alma (1).pdf
	2.1-Att A - reso 6544 exhibit A_Boundary Map_Alma St.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Alma St



	3-Att B - Resolution 6545_pkg 7and8 menlo ave.pdf
	3.1- reso 6545 exhibit A_Att B - Boundary Map_Parking Lot 7 and 8.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Parking Lot 7 & 8



	4- Att C - Resolution 6546_middlefield.pdf
	4.1-reso 6546 exhibit A-Att C - Boundary Map_Middlefield.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Middlefield



	Att E - revised draft.pdf
	Sheet1


	H1-20200225 CC  Interim services approval
	Att A - Current service inventory - update.pdf
	Att A - Current services


	I1-20200225 CC Agenda topics
	I2-20200225 CC CIP Informational Item
	I3-20200225 CC Goal setting Racial Equity_GARE
	I4-20200225 CC USGS rezone

